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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888

INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDRERS OF

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts set out on pages 76 to 124 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which
give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements
of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a
test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
accounts are free from material misstatement. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the
accounts. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at
31st December 2002 and of the profit and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st March 2003
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

(RRIR 2 il 2 AT IR 2 B SR A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

#BE FXE I H=1—HI4EF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2002

—BE_F —EE-F
2002 2001
AR®TRT ARBTR

RMB'000 RMB'000
EERE Turnover 1,173,550 1,099,289
EmBEERE Cost of goods sold (863,134) (775,200)
== b Gross profit 310,416 324,089
Hb g A Other revenues 16,571 22,112
HEEH Selling expenses (117,542) (121,842)
EEEH Administrative expenses (109,683) (104,838)
HitZ & &M Other operating expenses (3,894) (8,358)
KRERBF Operating profit 95,868 116,163
B E R Finance costs (14,872) (18,066)
BB AT E A Profit before taxation 80,996 98,097
HIE Taxation (12,559) (16,307)
BREEER Profit after taxation 68,437 81,790
DY RERELS Minority interests (56) (44)
IR 3R FE 45 28 R Profit attributable to shareholders 68,381 81,746
B E Dividends 27,439 36,585
BREF Earnings per share AR¥TRMB0.149 AR¥TRMB0.187




(RRIR 2 il 25 A0 IR 2 il S5 A A )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ﬁ"_ e g E ﬁ {E §
v

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

o
ZEF4HEf - H=1+—H ASAT31ST DECEMBER 2002
it aE ot -1 ~Jo- —EE-—F
Note 2002 2001
AR®TR AR¥T
RMB'000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 11 573,270 504,653
EEIR Construction-in-progress 12 163,299 91,163
BE Investments 13 55,277 55,277
_____ 791,846 651,093
RBEE Current assets
T7E Inventories 15 218,634 195,549
EWEREEE Trade and bills receivables 16 261,358 254,413
HiEWEIE - S Other receivables, deposits and 65,103 53,039
REMRE prepayments
ml3E B H O E B Export value-added-tax recoverable 41,429 40,899
EWEZEZERATKIE  Amount due from immediate holding
company 17 27,569 20,424
EHRE Short-term investments 76 164
ml 3R [E 8B =K Income tax recoverable 5,762 4,436
ReERBITERES Cash and bank balances 503,467 617,231
1,123,398 1,186,155
REBAEE Current liabilities
ERARFREE Trade and bills payables 18 108,988 85,734
HihENRER Other payables and accrued 47,339 32,290
EstE A charges
EHIRITER Short-term bank loans 21 190,000 182,100
9 3 1 - unsecured
REBITERZ Current portion of
—FRNEEERE long-term bank loans
I - unsecured 21 150,000 —
496,327 300,124
RBEEEE Net current assets 627,071 886,031
HEERRBARE Total assets less current liabilities 1,418,917 1,537,124
BARRR : Financed by:
[\ Share capital 19 457,313 457,313
R Reserves 20 929,681 890,918
BORER S Proposed final dividend 20 27,439 36,585
BB RS Shareholders' funds 1,414,433 1,384,816
LY REER Minority interests 2,675 499
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
ELEBIE Deferred taxation 5(d) 1,809 1,809
RHMBITER » EIKF Long-term bank loans - unsecured 21 — 150,000
1,418,917 1,537,124
BEEAR On behalf of the Board
BE =R Guo Qin Gao Qinggang

EE EE Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET

(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 ol SR A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

ZEEF T+ ZH=+—H ASAT 31ST DECEMBER 2002

it aF —EE_F —EE-F
Note 2002 2001
AR®TT ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 11 572,530 504,239
ERIRE Construction-in-progress 12 163,299 91,163
BE Investments 13 55,277 55,277
MEBARRE Investments in subsidiaries 14 6,457 880
797,563 651,559
REEE Current assets
7E Inventories 15 213,031 193,162
EURFARERE Trade and bills receivables 16 261,358 254,413
HiEWRE BER Other receivables, deposits and
ANRE prepayments 63,424 52,515
ARG OEERK Export value-added-tax recoverable 41,429 40,899
B B 4 B Amount due from immediate 17 27,569 20,424
DNERIE holding company
HHKRE Short-term investments 76 164
AREREHRR Income tax recoverable 5,065 4,093
REeRBITERES Cash and bank balances 495,429 615,893
1,107,381 1,181,563
RBEE Current liabilities
ENERRRE Trade and bills payables 18 103,592 83,499
HtERRERESER Other payables and accrued charges 46,586 32,007
SHEBRTER  BER Short-term bank loans - unsecured 21 190,000 182,100
RERTERZ—FR Current portion of long-term
EEELE - EEH bank loans - unsecured 21 150,000 —
490,178 297,606
REEERE Net current assets 617,203 883,957
BEERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,414,766 1,535,516
BEARRR : Financed by:
(&N Share capital 19 457,313 457,313
#E Reserves 20 928,205 889,809
RIREE Proposed final dividend 20 27,439 36,585
REER Shareholders' fund 1,412,957 1,383,707
*RBEE Non-current liabilities
EEHKE Deferred taxation 5(d) 1,809 1,809
RESBITER Long-term bank loans - unsecured 21 = 150,000
1,414,766 1,535,516

EEEaAX On behalf of the Board
= = R Guo Qin
BEE EE Director

Gao Qinggang
Director
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE FEE F+ H=1T—HI ¥ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2002
Bt aE —ZTZ_F —BE-F
Note 2002 2001
AR%®TT AR% T
RMB'000 RMB'000
R—B—Bz#ER Total equity as at 1st January 1,384,816 966,738
KEEZBF Profit for the year 20 68,381 81,746
RE Dividends 20 (36,585) (34,185)
2% AR Issue of additional A Shares — 370,517
BALZEEATRE — Decrease in statutory public welfare
EISRREANRRZ reserve fund - Capital expenditure
BEARMERH for common facilities of staff 20 (2,179) —
R+=-—HA=+—H Total equity as at 31st December
2B 1,414,433 1,384,816
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 ol SR A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BEZFEZF | ZH=1+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2002

Htat k- -3 Jom 2 —EB-F
Note 2002 2001
AR®TR AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000
REER v BLFH Net cash generated from operations 22(a) 142,317 54,329
XA RBR PRC income tax paid (13,885) (22,701)
RETEHZEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 128,432 31,628
mAFE
RETEH Investing activities
BEEEEE Purchase of fixed assets (38,985) (34,050)
HEBEEEE Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 2,186 828
SNEEIRNE Payment for construction-in-progress (178,404) (61,237)
WEL R A Interest received 13,215 6,278
WERERE Dividend income received from investments 931 3,052
BEIEHEE Redemption of short-term investments 88 —
REZEH2ESHRHUFE  Net cash outflow from investing activities (200,969) (85,129)
BRaizReR L FHE Net cash outflow before financing (72,537) (53,501)
BEEE Financing activities 22(b)
2 2% AR Issue of additional A Shares — 370,517
FERTER New bank loans 329,100 522,900
EERTEM Repayment of bank loans (321,200) (449,900)
LERRRER Advance from minority shareholders 2,120 240
KBRS Dividends paid (36,585) (34,185)
EAFIE Interest paid (14,662) (18,066)
Bz HE(HE) Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
RARE financing (41,227) 391,506
FEeRELEEY (Decrease)/increase in cash and
(R 2) /A% cash equivalents (113,764) 338,005
—B—BAZBRER Cash and cash equivalents
REeEEY at 1st January 617,231 279,226
TZA=+—-HzZHR& Cash and cash equivalents
RREEEY at 31st December 503,467 617,231
REeRELEEY Analysis of the balances of cash
BEERD AT and cash equivalents:
RERBTERESRS Cash and bank balances 503,467 617,231
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these accounts are set out below:

(a)

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and comply with accounting standards issued by the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants ("HKSA"). They
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except that, as disclosed in the accounting
policies below, property, plant and equipment are
stated at valuation.

In the current year, the Group adopted the following
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAP")
issued by the HKSA which are effective for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1st January 2002:

SSAP 1 (revised)

Presentation of financial statements
SSAP 11 (revised)

Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised)

Cash flow statements

SSAP 34

Employee benefits

The Group has also adopted SSAP 35 "Government
grants and disclosure of government assistance",
which are effective for periods commencing on or after
1st July 2002, in advance of the effective date.

The changes to the Group's accounting policies and
the effect of adopting these new/revised standards are
set out in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued)

(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
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(b)

(c)

TESIHHE (&

REMRHE

rREREEELURTER
ERHOBRLAB(TARAF])
REMBAR(AEE])E
EBE+=-A=+—-Hikz
HERE - B AREARRT
EESEEZHBEHRE
B BRESMBREER
B EARBBRESEAS
HRE s EESEERL
BRZERERZAF - i
FRERAFEZEARRS
FEBEERARETY
8 o

DERRESRENARRE
MBARCEERBEREE
RERHES &S -

EXDAZEERERRE
A KB A BRRE LA
ENRRESREFAAR -
RRFEHE DR 2 EEE
BB RERREARK-

M3 - AR RE

T EREREGERRR
BERIRBBREBRYK
0 #8886 75 K T $% £ 1 E PR AR
FRUESEETHE - A
BRERHBERME 2R
18149 55 5T i 52 B B fURL = )
W EEME -

HttE R EEREMERR
AATERREREEEES
ﬁEO

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group")
made up to 31st December. Subsidiaries are those
entities in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
controls more than half of the voting power; has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies;
to appoint or remove the majority of the members of
the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at
the meetings of the board of directors. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interest of shareholders
outside the Group in the operating results and net
assets of the subsidiaries.

In the Company's balance sheet the investment in the
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights are stated at revalued amount less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses and are amortised over the land use
rights period on a straight-line basis. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount is
assessed and written off immediately to its recoverable
amount.

Fixed assets are stated at revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their revalued amount less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives of the
fixed assets are as follows:

Buildings 15 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over
their expected useful lives to the Group.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess
whether there is any indication that assets are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to
its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account except where
the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment
loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that
same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in the profit and loss account. Any
revaluation reserve balance remaining attributable to
the relevant asset is transferred to retained earnings
and is shown as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. Cost
comprises all direct and indirect costs of acquisition
or construction of buildings and plant and machinery
as well as interest expenses on the related funds
borrowed during the construction, installation and
testing periods prior to the commissioning date. A plant
is considered to be commissioned when it is capable
of producing saleable quality output in commercial
quantities on an ongoing basis.

Operating lease

Leases where substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the leasing company are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

Investments

Unlisted investments are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether
the fair values have declined below the carrying
amounts. When a decline other than temporary has
occurred, the carrying amount of such investments will
be reduced to its fair value. The impairment loss is
recognised as an expense in the profit and loss
account. This impairment loss is written back to the
profit and loss account when the circumstances and
events that led to the write-downs or write-offs cease
to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new
circumstances and events will persist for the
foreseeable future.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

()

)]

Inventories

Inventories comprise stocks and work-in-progress and,
other than consumables, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated
on the weighted average basis, comprises materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overhead expenditure. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.
Consumables are stated at cost less provision for
obsolescence.

Trade receivables

Provision is made against trade receivables to the
extent that they are considered to be doubtful. Trade
receivables in the balance sheet are stated net of such
provision.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current
taxation rate in respect of timing differences between
profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as
stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or
an asset is expected to be payable or recoverable in
the foreseeable future.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt
with in the profit and loss account.

Foreign currency translation differences relating to fund
borrowed for the acquisition and construction of fixed
assets are capitalised to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest cost. All other
exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and
loss account.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to the
customers and the title has passed.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.

(iiiy  Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

(iv)  Operating lease rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis.

Government grants

A government grant is initially recognised as deferred
income, when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching with it
and that the grant will be received. Grants relating to
income are recognised in the profit and loss account
on a systematic basis to match with the related costs
which they are intended to compensate.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in a local municipal government
retirement scheme whereby it is required to pay annual
contributions at the rate of 23% (2001: 23%) of the
total salaries, bonuses and allowances paid to the
Group's staff in the previous year. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
staff of the Group. Contributions to this retirement
scheme are charged to the profit and loss account as
and when incurred.
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1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

()

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred in development projects relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products are expensed
unless the technical feasibility and intention of
completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do
so, costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell
or use the asset that will generate probable future
economic benefits. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purposes of the consolidated
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash and bank balances, deposits held at
call with banks, cash investments with maturity of three
months or less from date of investment and bank
overdrafts.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group
expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

EEER  c RGBT AR
REHRERENEHSIBZR
BFEMR EHARTHESTE
HEKEER  REESH
RAEATEHHEEMKRE A
BE o

RREETSWER - B
ERBEMETRE - BREH
RERzREMRBEHT
RHREFERE  LERE

FREEERCBHENSEH
MAKEEZEE  WEE
EERE RIS REHE
BRAETEER  MEEL
THREZEFELERREN

EBER -

FREETSWRER - B8
RATREW B RBE N 2 R E R
BEMERRE  sEERE
BRERBERER  BEX
BIRBIREE -

1 FESTTEE #B) 1  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(q DRABBRAAREE (g) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
RAREEERECRENSH A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
MARESIEZ2EE HWEE from past events and whose existence will only be
EERE—"RISZRBHE confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
BRESEER > MEEL or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

TREEREGHIELERREH control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation

arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed
in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,
an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

1 EEEEE (A)

(r)

7B E

BERAKE A KR
& ARECRESEBD
HERERTEREEX
M it & 73 & 6 Bl BUX B3

ERRXES -

RO EKAE SR8 S
X pMEETERRFEE
EE -HEIR FEE
WRkIE ~ AR E H O EER
RRREREHM T EBETR
EIFEHNR - 2 HMEBEER
EEEMARERER -EX
HXHEEBABRTEER
XRERIRWKE o

ERMEDBEHE - HEH
DEREFHEBRRTE -

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets,
construction-in-progress, inventories, receivables,
export value added tax recoverable, operating cash and
exclude items such as income tax recoverable.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude items such as taxation payable. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to fixed assets and
construction-in-progress.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customers are
located.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

o
2 ZEHH -WRZRoHER 2  Turnover, revenue and segmental

information

FEEEIENREME  REREE
Emo BELCERBE RE(WA
BIR&HE)  tIRAEMBER - AF

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
production and sales of pharmaceutical products including
bulk pharmaceuticals, preparations (e.g. tablets and

ERBBATIBHMT injections), chemicals and other products. Revenues
recognised during the year are as follows:
—BE_F —BE-—F
2002 2001
AR®TT AR%Fr
RMB'000 RMB'000
= -0 Turnover
EmHEERA Sales of goods 1,173,550 1,099,289
Hr g A Other revenues
FE WA Interest income 12,527 14,668
HEWA Rental income 2,052 2,375
BRI E WA Sales of scrap materials 772 421
BEWA Dividend income from investments 931 3,052
KT EZEE KA Technical service income 289 1,596
16,571 22,112
U A Total revenues 1,190,121 1,121,401
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
2 ZEHEXH -WHZkSIEER 2 Turnover, revenue and segmental
(#8) information continued)
AEBEREB S BRETFELE Analysis of the Group's segment information for the year by
PHBERZFWMT ;- business segment and geographical location of customers are

set out as follows:-

(i) ¥R HER (i) By business segment
—$3_ —22-F
2002 2001
BRRE Rt 0 #HEXE Hit &S
Pharm- Pharm-
aceutical Other aceutical Other
business operations Group  business operations Group

ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2AEHA Segment revenues 1,189,190 931 1,190,121 1,118,349 3,052 1,121,401
PHEE Segment results 94,937 931 95,868 113,111 3,052 116,163
PHEE Segment assets 1,854,129 55,353 1,909,482 1,777,371 55,441 1,832,812
AITBEE Unallocated assets 5,762 4,436
BEE Total assets 1,915,244 1,837,248
FBEE Segment liabilities (499,002) - (499,002) (450,623) - (450,623)
AOBEE Unallocated liabilities (1,809) (1,809)
Bafk Total liabilities (500,811) (452,432)
BERHX Capital expenditure 217,389 - 217,389 95,287 - 95,287
& Depreciation 74,024 - 74,024 69,039 - 69,039
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

2 ZEHEXH -WHERDIEER 2 Turnover, revenue and segmental
(%) information (continued)

(ii)

BEEELE D BER

(ii) By geographical location of customers

SEBA SERRE
Segment revenues Segment results
PP F _FF-F “BP"_F _—Z2T-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTT AR%TrT AR¥TFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FE (B# &%) PRC (including Hong Kong) 772,756 773,155 223,058 249,826

&M Europe
E)| Americas
HE=R Others

R 5 E KA Unallocated costs

169,844 148,347 43,798 39,316
170,369 138,495 36,249 33,637
77,152 61,404 23,882 23,422
1,190,121 1,121,401 326,987 346,201

(231,119)  (230,038)

= EEFE Operating profit 95,868 116,163
AEBZREEEHNURF All the Group's assets are located in the People's Republic of
° China.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
3 KREREF 3  Operating profit
REBFESTHTARMBKRTIER : Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging the
following:
. 1 Jet: 3 —EE-F
2002 2001
AR®TR AR¥FT
RMB'000 RMB'000
A Crediting
HEBREEE W= Gain on disposal of fixed assets 1,753 380
BT 768 B O U B B S A Government subsidies on export
sales proceeds received 1,462 1,281
BEFHERREFEME Write-back of provision for slow-
moving and obsolete inventories 46 -
kR Charging
BEERESEER Advertising and promotion expenses 76,999 70,946
% B AT & Auditors' remuneration 1,000 1,095
EIRK(TEEESR Staff costs (excluding directors' and
EEEME)(MEE9) supervisors' emoluments) (note 9) 131,604 119,584
EEEEFRE Depreciation 74,024 69,039
BN FIEL Net exchange loss 641 551
THREFKEHE Operating lease rentals on
land and buildings 1,406 658
RERER Provision for bad and doubtful debts 10,557 10,180
HHRREFEES Provision for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories - 37
HERREEH Repairs and maintenance expenses 34,952 37,400

R R BB R A Research and development costs 18,611 12,355
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

o
B8 H 4  Finance costs
—EE-F —BE2-—F
2002 2001
AR®TFTT AR¥FT
RMB'000 RMB'000
RITERFE Interest on bank loans 14,651 18,066
BB EEFE Interest on discounted bills 498 =
W BUR BY Less: government subsidies (277) -
14,872 18,066
B1E 5 Taxation
—ET_F —2Z2-F
2002 2001
AR¥ T AR¥Frx
RMB'000 RMB'000
REEERERAZH2HEBELOT ! The amount of taxation charged to
the consolidated profit and loss
account represents:
FEEFMER PRC enterprise income tax
— - current 12,559 35,875
- BREBIE - tax refunded = (19,568)

12,559 16,307
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e B B &E o)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

5 FIE ()

(a)

RELREEETHEHRE
15 78 7 B9 35 b B B8 =2 [2002]5
B RATRHERES
HEMtE  IRBE-F
E-F+-A=+—HLHE
ER - B15%NBEEH M
EFBH HEER-ZE
—F% > ASFrSETi
FRERRAEELL -

RATER_—BE—FEE
BRBE U 1933% Ak R Bl 4
EfEH - REBEKER B
BB R E B F B
BBEAXH  RAARR=ZF
—FE+-_A=+—HILEE
A ZECEFMSHENE
o EBEEEEREA
TMAMEEFBSHOERB
WAK18% - EERBE W
WEBREITHEERE
fE o

BRARDTN  REBEH=
EZ_ER_TT—FEE
SR B UL H933% 48 4 P Bl £
EFFEH -

FrEEHE-_TT-R-F
E-HE+-H=+—HL®
1B {8 B 4F B 3 4% FE SR B UK A
BRLEBANSESH  &ERA
RAEB|EBFGHRME -

5 Taxation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pursuant to approval documents from Zibo Local Tax
Bureau's notice numbered KaiZi [2002] 5, the Company
is qualified as a high-technology enterprise and subject
to PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31st December 2002. This treatment will be
subject to annual reviews by Zibo Local Tax Bureau in
future years after 2002.

The Company was subject to PRC enterprise income
tax at the rate of 33% on its taxable income for the
year ended 31st December 2001. Pursuant to approval
documents from the State Council, the Finance Bureau
and the National Tax Bureau, the Company can enjoy
a preferential enterprise income tax refund treatment
equals to 18% of the taxable income in respect of the
enterprise income tax paid to the taxation bureau up
to 31st December 2001. It is the Directors' opinion that
these refunds were received without recourse.

Other than the Company, the Group was subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% on its
taxable income for the years ended 31st December
2002 and 2001.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
in the accounts as the Group has no income
assessable to Hong Kong profits tax for the years
ended 31st December 2001 and 2002.
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o
5 BiIE &) 5 Taxation (continued)
(dy EZEHIE (d)  Deferred taxation
XEERELFH
Group and Company
—TT_F —BE-—F
2002 2001
AR¥TT AR T
RMB'000 RMB'000
R—B—HBE+Z=HB=+4+—H At istJanuary and 31st December 1,809 1,809
BEEHBEMT : The amount of deferred taxation represents:
—EZT”F —EE2-F
2002 2001
AREHRZ AREHEZ
AR2ZE CEREF BSE2H EREE
Full Full
potential Provision potential Provision
liabilities made liabilities made
ARETIT ARWTT AR¥TT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEBIZERM 2 Timing differences on
S RAIFTAZE HKGAAP adjustments
MEEXZEE 834 834 1,467 1,467
Hih g2 Other timing differences 975 975 342 342
1,809 1,809 1,809 1,809
AEBEBARBEZ2ENE There is no material unprovided deferred taxation.
EFIR o
6 REEWLEER 6 Profit attributable to shareholders

FAXRRFAREZBRREGRAA
AR¥68,014,000T(=FF—F :
A K%81,340,0007T) °

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
accounts of the Company to the extent of RMB68,014,000
(2001: RMB81,340,000).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

o
7 KRE 7 Dividends
—EE_F —EE—F
2002 2001
AR¥TFIT AR¥Frx
RMB'000 RMB'000
BRAHRKRE-ERARY0.06T Final, proposed of RMB0.06
(Z2Z—F : AR%0.087T) (2001: RMBO0.08)
$#£307,312,8308% per share on 307,312,830
(== — £ : 307,312,830%) (2001: 307,312,830)
AR % 150,000,0008% A shares and 150,000,000
(ZZZ— 4 : 150,000,0008%) (2001: 150,000,000)
HER & H shares 27,439 36,585

R-CBE=F=A-+—H8T2
23 L EEE#12307,312,8308%
A% % 150,000,000 iR HBZ - & 3 K
HRESRARY0.06T(ITE B
0.05667C * AR EH) o LIFHIRKER
BEYEAAREKE FIEEMFRE
EEREBZE-_ZEE=F+=-HA=1+
—BLEEEINEZBFRERNDIK

SREF

ERERBIAZRREBELAEEZRR
EEERAR%68,381,000T(==
E—F: \E%81,746,0007T) % &
FRAERTROZMETLTHEE
457,312,830 (=T —F :
437,093,652% )5 & o

BE_ST-FN=_BFT=_F1=
A=t-BLmEFE  9RFH
REERBERENTER - St
REHSRANESMELE -

At a meeting held on 21st March 2003, the directors declared
a final dividend of RMBO0.06 per share (approximately
HK$0.0566 per share, including income tax for A Shares) on
307,312,830 A Shares and 150,000,000 H Shares. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in
these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation of
retained earnings for the year ending 31st December 2003.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group's profit attributable to shareholders of RMB68,381,000
(2001: RMB81,746,000) and based on the weighted average
of 457,312,830 (2001: 437,093,652) shares in issue during
the year.

There was no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share
for the year ended 31st December 2002 and 2001 as there
were no dilutive shares outstanding during the years ended
31st December 2002 and 2001.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

9 BIRANITBEBEEERE 9

Staff costs (excluding directors' and
supervisors' emoluments)

SN )

—BB_F —EE-F

2002 2001

AR®TFTT AREFr

RMB'000 RMB'000

HMITE Salaries and wages 91,439 83,795

EIEAMNRHEMER Staff welfare and other benefits 21,748 18,602
BN AR -5 E ARG 8I(ME ) Retirement costs - defined

contribution plans (note) 18,417 17,187

131,604 119,584

Htet

NEEB MW BUFR RN S 852
HEBERBE-FAEENTFREREZFS 1
ARER(TERBANBEEN23% (=S —
F:23%)c BAAABBEURANLERAAR
#2100 (=B —F : AR¥1,8507T) ° X
HEERAGTENERAREERBERERN
B o

FIEEIHEERNZERBEEERELRKE
TEARBENEELLHIMRKER o it T B
BERERNTBERRENAAEEZRE
BAMMIBANEENER - Bt - BREX
RS AEEYREERESXNER
RREREMRKEER -

Note:

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in basic
defined contribution pension scheme organised by the local municipal
governments, whereby it is required to pay contributions at the rate of 23%
(2001: 23%) on the total salaries, bonuses and allowances (the "relevant
income") paid to the Group's staff in the previous year. The monthly relevant
income per head of a staff is subject to a cap of RMB2,100 (2001: RMB1,850).
Contributions to this retirement scheme are charged to the profit and loss
account as and when incurred.

All employees are entitled to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of
their salary at their normal retirement age. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired staff of the Group. Accordingly, the Group has no other material
obligation for payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contributions described above.
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ik B B &E o)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

10 ESRESEME 10 Directors' and Supervisors' emoluments
(@) FARAXEERESERESX (a)  The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the
NS EBEOT : directors and supervisors of the Company during the
year are as follows:

—TT_F —EE-F

2002 2001

AR¥TFT AR¥T T

RMB'000 RMB'000

e Fees - —

Hih & Other emoluments

— BEXRFERER - Basic salaries and allowances 753 700

— AL - Bonuses 1,926 1,500

— BRIAREF - Retirement benefits 157 150

2,836 2,350
tiigECEEHMHESE Other emoluments disclosed above include

ERA={(Z2Z—F : 8§)
BIUFHITEEIFTZ2HRE
AR%90,000T (=8 —

RMB90,000 (2001: Nil) paid to three independent non-
executive directors (2001: Nil).

FIE)
JIAUTHE& B 2EEM (o)  The number of directors and supervisors whose
EEABAT : emoluments fell within the following bands:
EHITER
RITES Non- executive Ex
Executive directors directors Supervisors
—22-f B2 CZBB-F CEE-§F CZBB-fF CEBE-f
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
ZZAR%  Nito
1,000,000;t RMB1,000,000 8 9 5 3 8 5

BE-ST-FR-FT=
F+=A=+-BLFE
REEEAEBHEMNS -

BE-FF-FR=-FF=
Ft=-A=t+-HLFER
MEBBENELALHRAE
AERTES HEZME
BERREXSH -

(c)

No directors or supervisors waived their emoluments
in respect of the years ended 31st December 2001
and 2002.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years ended 31st
December 2001 and 2002 are executive directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
11 BEEEE 11 Fixed assets
E3 .|
Group
BE - #3
R
Plant,
it fE R machinery, RE
Land use BEY and Motor 5t
rights  Buildings equipment vehicles Total
ARBTT ARWTT ARMTT AR¥TT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EftfE Valuation
R-EBE-F At 1st January
—A—H 2002 76,975 184,749 515,544 18,491 795,759
BETE Reclassification - 4,155 (4,155) - -
HEERIREA Transferred from
(HEE12) construction-in-progress
(note 12) - 34,508 69,581 - 104,089
hE Additions 226 6,229 31,546 984 38,985
HE Disposals = = (1,276) (1,776) (3,052)
R-BE-F At 31st December
+=A=+-H 2002 77,201 229,641 611,240 17,699 935,781
2/ITE Accumulated depreciation
R-EBE-F At 1st January
—A—H 2002 7,558 82,783 195,004 5,761 291,106
ENE Reclassification = 824 (824) = -
rEERE Charge for the year 1,673 15,451 55,140 1,760 74,024
HE Disposals = = (1,147) (1,472) (2,619)
R-ZB=F At 31st December
+=-A=+—-H 2002 9,231 99,058 248,173 6,049 362,511
RERE Net book value
R-BZ-F At 31st December
+=A=+-H 2002
(HEE11(e)) (note 11(e)) 67,970 130,583 363,067 11,650 573,270
R-EE-F At 31st December
+-A=+—-H 2001 69,417 101,966 320,540 12,730 504,653




(IRIEZr itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY

ik B B &E o)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

o
11 EEE @) 11 Fixed assets (continued)
3N
Company
BE #3R
R
Plant,
s machinery, RE
Land use BEW and Motor 5t
rights  Buildings equipment vehicles Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARMTT AR¥TT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EftfE Valuation
R-BZ_-f At 1st January
—A—H 2002 76,975 184,749 515,047 18,491 795,262
ENE Reclassification = 4,155 (4,155) = =
HERIREA Transferred from
(HEE12) construction-in-progress
(note 12) - 34,508 69,581 - 104,089
hE Additions - 6,229 31,328 984 38,541
HE Disposals = = (1,276) (1,776) (3,052)
R-EE_F At 31st December
+=ZA=+-H 2002 76,975 229,641 610,525 17,699 934,840
2W/TE Accumulated depreciation
R-BZ_-f At 1st January
—A—H 2002 7,558 82,783 194,921 5,761 291,023
ENE Reclassification = 824 (824) = =
XEERE Charge for the year 1,673 15,451 55,022 1,760 73,906
HE Disposals = = (1,147) (1,472) (2,619)
R-ZB=f At 31st December
+=A=+—H 2002 9,231 99,058 247,972 6,049 362,310
HRERE Net book value
R-EE-F At 31st December
+=A=+-H 2002
(HEE11(e)) (note 11(e)) 67,744 130,583 362,553 11,650 572,530
R-BZ-f At 31st December
+-A=+—H 2001 69,417 101,966 320,126 12,730 504,239
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11

[ E

(a)

(b)

BE (®)

AEBERARATDZFERE
WHNRFE - REERAR
AAZEEFEAARYE
59,873,000 7T Ky + ith {55 FA #&
HSETER L hERRA
BT BH50FE - B—A A
NE=ZAN\BBHE -

AEBERAATNREEE
BARYE7,871,0007TH L b
EAE  DHEEMERL
WEBRRARF - AH29
£ HEE-2=TF+-A
T+t8 -

AEEZEAREAARY
226,000 7T /Y £ it 5 FA #E I8
HSETER L ERRAR
B¥ . BH505 - B=2 T
—E+—-—HA=-+=—HB#E&
go

REBRATNBRERES
BERZMBERAR LS
ARAFNEEEET LR —
hhEE+=A=+—HH
R R & A {EL AT 1L SR SR
ERMRTEEBRAESNE
EEMGE EHEEAAR
#6,420,0007T ° HEK QT
HWEEEER—AAARER
A=1+HH—BIHEM-2
ERIGHE T AR A TR A6
TEEHGE RREME
EH AR#%22,625,0005T °
MEEGEEIIEAHEBZE
—EE-Ft+=-H=t+—H
LEFEEMNITEERAA
K¥1,341,000T (==& —
£ : AK¥2,126,0007T) °

11 Fixed assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

All buildings of the Group and the Company are located
in the PRC. Land use right of the Group and the
Company with net book value of RMB59,873,000 were
granted by the State Land Administration Bureau of
Zibo City for a period of 50 years from 8th March 1996.

Land use right of the Group and the Company with net
book value of RMB7,871,000 was granted by the State
Land Administration Bureau of Zibo City for a period
of 29 years to 27th December 2030.

Land use right of the Group with net book value of
RMB226,000 was granted by the State Land
Administration Bureau of Zibo City for a period of 50
years from 22nd November 2002.

In the preparation for the listing of the Company's
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Company's fixed assets were first revalued as at
31st December 1995 by Shandong Certified Public
Accountants, a firm of valuers registered in the PRC
on a depreciated replacement cost basis as part of its
restructuring. The revaluation surplus was
RMB6,420,000. Another separate revaluation was
carried out on the Company's fixed assets as at 30th
September 1996, by Chesterton Petty Limited, an
independent valuer, on an open market value basis.
This has resulted in a further revaluation surplus of
RMB22,625,000 to the Company. The adoption of the
above two revaluations in the accounts has resulted in
an additional depreciation charge of RMB1,341,000
(2001: RMB2,126,000) in respect of the year ended
31st December 2002.




(IRIEZr itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

e B B &E o)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

11

EEE @) 11 Fixed assets (continued)
(c) MAKEERARARZEEE (¢)  Had the fixed assets of the Group and the Company
EUREKERZTHEA been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
R ZEEEZRHEESS the carrying value of such assets in the accounts would
BAE have been approximately:
xEKE ELH
Group Company
PP F 2T ZBP-HF _—TT-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
AR¥TT AR TT ARBETT AR¥TrT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
= tth {5 F A Land use rights 67,629 69,076 67,629 69,076
BEY Buildings 125,555 95,209 125,555 95,209
BE - ¥ MR Plant, machinery and
equipment 362,327 293,649 361,813 293,235
_E Motor vehicles 11,164 12,244 11,164 12,244
566,675 470,178 566,161 469,764
(dy HUEERIFTEBREZE W (d)  The above revaluations do not constitute a timing
WEELIRERE - difference and therefore have no deferred taxation
effect.
(e) R-BE-_F+-A=+-— () At 31st December 2002, all fixed assets of the
B RXARRAEEZHME Company and the Group were revalued by the directors
EEEEYHRARESE on a depreciated replacement cost basis. Since there

TEEERAEEEME-
HREMGERR-FZT-

t-A=t—-RZREFE
YEEREZR  EEZRA/E
EEER-Z2-F1+_-A
=t—-RAZREFEELER
Fi RRERE R 2 TR [E
BE-

are no material differences between the revaluated
amount and the net book value at 31st December 2002,
the Directors are of the opinion that the net book value
of fixed assets at 31st December 2002 fairly reflected
their recoverable amount at that time.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

12 TEIRE 12 Construction-in-progress
F$EERFLT
Group and Company
1 Jemt: —EE-F
2002 2001
ARETTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
n—HA—H At 1st January 91,163 63,775
12 hn Additions 178,404 61,237
BAEEEEGE11) Transferred to fixed assets (note 11) (104,089) (33,849)
HEZE AR THETER Capital expenditure for common
BRI 2 B A XX (£20) facilities of staff charged against
statutory public welfare reserve
fund (note 20) (2,179) -
Rt=RA=+-8 At 31st December 163,299 91,163
EEIRER-SZ-Ft+=A= Construction-in-progress comprises expenditures incurred on
T HEEBREEMARBRENEE buildings, plants and machinery not yet commissioned at 31st
Y - BERBBEREMZEENE December 2002.
X EFXRFER-BE-FEAY
RERAREEIRNER For the years ended 31st December 2002 and 2001, no loans
were borrowed for financing construction-in-progress.
EEIRCSEBEMELNPELL
REEETHIHERAEZTESA Included in construction-in-progress, RMB24,000,000
K %24,000,000c (= FZ—F : represents prepayment for purchase of land use rights of two
i®) o pieces of land in Zibo, the Shandong, PRC (2001:Nil).
13 RE&E 13 Investments

FEERFLTE
Group and Company
—FI=F —BT-F
2002 2001
AR®TIT ARMFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

FLTRE  EEARE

Unlisted investments, at cost 55,277 55,277
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[ ]
14 MIEBEATKRE 14 Investments in subsidiaries
¥ /N
Company
—s¥=% -®¥-%
2002 2001
AR®TFTT AR¥FTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FETARAREG  BEAE Unlisted investments, at cost 6,457 880

R-BE-F+-A=+-RA2ZH

The details of the subsidiaries at 31st December 2002 are as

BARWT : follows:
4
RIEX
Rk E M B = ER
Country of ITERBR BFiE HBEHES
incorporation BEHE Particulars of  Effective
NCEL and kind of Principal activities registered interest
Name legal entity and place of operation capital held
BNFEZBEREE HE REBEREREY R
ARAR BREELT BERAMETE AR ™600,0007 *52.8%
Dezhou Xinhua Tai Kang People's Republic Retail sales of medicine RMB600,000 *52.8%
Drug Store of China (the "PRC"), and medical products
Company Limited limited company in the PRC
REMEREE HE REEREREYR
ARAR BREELT BERAMTE AR #900,0007 *46.6%
Dong Ying Xinhu PRC, Retail sales of medicine RMB900,000 *46.6%
Drug Store limited company and medical products
Company Limited in the PRC
BEHEREE HE R EREREY R
ARAR BREELT BERAMTE AR ¥300,0007 55%
Wei Fang Xinhua PRC, Retail sales of medicine RMB300,000 55%
Drug Store limited company and medical products
Company Limited in the PRC
HEMERERE HE REBEREEY R
ARAR BREELT BERAMTE AR ™1,000,0007T 88%
Zibo Xinhua PRC, Retail sales of medicine RMB1,000,000 88%
Pharmacy limited company and medical products

Company Limited

in the PRC




(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY

ik B B & o

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
14 MEBRARKRE @) 14 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
o it
BIEBER
R & E Hfi i1 BRI
Country of FEXRBR BEHE HRER
incorporation HEE B Particulars of  Effective
NCIEE and kind of Principal activities registered interest
Name legal entity and place of operation capital held
HEHERER R HE RPBERERETR
BRAF BREEQT MR & AK#2,000,0007T 90%
Zibo Xinhua PRC, Design of medical RMB2,000,000
Pharmaceutical Design limited company production projects
Institute Company Limited in the PRC
MEHFE=ALT HE RAEEEEE
BRAF BREEQT hREE % 7t500,0007T 70%
Zibo Xinhua PRC, Production of medical US$500,000
Sanhe Chemical limited company intermediates
Company Limited in the PRC
* HARAEEEEZRG Shares held indirectly by the Company
15 =FE 15 Inventories
*RH ¥ 3/
Group Company
—BP-F —BT-F ZTB-HF —TE-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTT AR¥TrT ARBFTT AR®TTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B # % Raw materials 23,991 22,480 23,991 22,480
EHE Work-in-progress 76,872 69,378 76,872 69,378
ER M Finished goods 109,728 96,246 104,125 93,859
M m Consumables 8,043 7,445 8,043 7,445
218,634 195,549 213,031 193,162

R-BE-F+=-A=+-8 M
AR FEIRZASERAKRAF
FENEEHEAGHRXARS
11,837,000t (ZBE— & : AR%
9,741,0003T) °

At 31st December 2002, the amount of inventories of the
Group and the Company that are carried at net realisable
value amounted to RMB11,837,000 (2001: RMB9,741,000).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

16 EBURARERE

17

R-ZBE-F+=-A=Z+—-H &
WRRRERBHRESAOT :

16

Trade and bills receivables

At 31st December 2002, the ageing analysis of the trade and
bills receivables were as follows:

FEEARELT
Group and Company
—$S_F it
2002 2001
AR¥TIT AR FT
RMB'000 RMB'000
—FR Within one year 245,366 242,177
—EEZ-F One to two years 13,268 11,757
—FR=F Two to three years 2,724 479
261,358 254,413
AEERAATZHOHEEZEHE The Group's and the Company's turnover from export sales

B EARRNRRESTNET
HE  ERBEHMSHRAURTIR
REFNET  EFBIUEFZ
BREREIRITERRERE -

FEUR B #2142 IR X A FR0E

EhREZEZERATRESBIEA
BAEREBEECERAHNRE -
R-ZEE-_F+=-HA=+—H It
ZERNEEREZIREFEAARE
20,695,0007c(—BZ—F : AR¥
14,386,0007T) ° HEFER A BAGE
B8 T A Uk = E U % PE A [ SR Bt
BARMIE R-BE_F+-A
=+—H EWEEERATGRE
DEURENEEZRARDRES
EHEARZFE-

17

is on letter of credit or documents against payment. The
remaining balances of turnover are on open account terms
which are partially covered by customers' stand-by letter of
credit or bank guarantees.

Amount due from immediate holding
company

The amount due from immediate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
Out of the total balance at 31st December 2002, approximately
RMB20,695,000 (2001: RMB14,386,000) was trading in
nature. The immediate holding company has undertaken to
settle and receive all amounts due to and due from the fellow
subsidiaries. As at 31st December 2002, the amount due from
immediate holding company represents the net balance due
to/from the immediate holding company and the fellow
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
18 EFNERIAKERE 18 Trade and bills payables
R-BE-_F+-A=+—H" [ At 31st December 2002, the ageing analysis of the trade and
HERFAEEENREIAAOT : bills payables were as follows:
F5ME AT
Group Company
BT F —TT-F Z8¥C 2
2002 2001 2002 2001

ARBFT AR®TT ARMTET AR¥Tr
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

—F LR Within one year 103,537 79,993 98,141 77,758
—FEBF One to two years 1,705 2,430 1,705 2,430
—EE=F Two to three years 304 2,575 304 2,575
BB=F Over three years 3,442 736 3,442 736

108,988 85,734 103,592 83,499

108
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
19 BAX 19 Share capital
EEERELAT
Group and Company
—EBT_F —EE-F
2002 2001
AR¥TFiT AR T
RMB'000 RMB'000
A TE B AR Registered
307,312,830 iz 307,312,830
(=== —% : 307,312,830%) (2001: 307,312,830)
ABRESREEARY1.007T A Shares of RMB1.00 each 307,313 307,313
150,000,000 % 150,000,000
(ZZBZ—% : 150,000,0004%) (2001: 150,000,000)
HEREEREEAR%1.00T H Shares of RMB1.00 each 150,000 150,000
457,313 457,313
ERTRABRKAE Issued and fully paid
307,312,830 iz 307,312,830
(ZZZ—% : 307,312,830%) (2001: 307,312,830)
AREREEARY¥1.00595 - A Shares of RMB1.00 each
divided into:
EIER State shares 214,440 214,440
EAR Legal person shares 16,720 16,720
18 A B Individual shares 76,153 76,153
307,313 307,313
150,000,000 % 150,000,000
(=ZZZ—% : 150,000,000%) (2001: 150,000,000)
HEE SR EEAK%1.007T H Shares of RMB1.00 each 150,000 150,000

457,313 457,313
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
20 f#fE 20 Reserves
xEME
Group
B RER
(E((b) BFL#ES ERES ®E
Share (§(b)) (E£(c)) B
premium Capital Reserve Asset REaH
account reserve funds revaluation Retained g
(note (b)) (note (b)) (note (c)) reserve earnings Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AR®TFT ARBTT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT

R=-ZZ-5-f—H

At 1st January 2001 126,101 78,642 113,462 29,045 192,175 539,425
BRAR

Issue of additional A Shares 340,517 - - - - 340,517
XEERT

Profit for the year - - - - 81,746 81,746
“EZZFERRARE

2000 Final dividend paid - - - - (34,185) (34,185)
BAREES (F()

Transfer to reserve funds (note (c)) — - 20,390 = (20,390) =

R-2Z-F¥+-A=+-H
At 31st December 2001 466,618 78,642 133,852 29,045 219,346 927,503

HER :

Representing:

R-BE-F+-A=+-H2RAE

Reserves at 31st December 2001 466,618 78,642 133,852 29,045 182,761 890,918
“ERR-FRRRAERE

2001 Final dividend proposed = = = = 36,585 36,585

R=%2-Ft=-A=1-H
At 31st December 2001 466,618 78,642 133,852 20,045 219,346 927,503
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

[
20 f##E @) 20 Reserves (continued)
xEME
Group
B R EE
(E((b) BFL#ES ERES BRE
Share (&E(b)) (i%(c)) B
premium Capital Reserve Asset REa27
account reserve funds revaluation Retained o1 ]
(note (b)) (note (b)) (note (c)) reserve earnings Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTT AR®TT ARMTT ARMTT

R-¥T-£-A-AH
At 1st January 2002 466,618 78,642 133,852 29,045 219,346 927,503
XEEERF
Profit for the year = = =
“EZ-FERKHRE
2001 Final dividend paid - - - - (36,585) (36,585)
BAREES (E()
Transfer to reserve funds (note (c)) = = 17,233 = (17,233) =
EIREENRIE 2 ERME X (FE12)
Capital expenditure for common

facilities of staff (Note 12) - - (2,179) - - (2,179)

68,381 68,381

R=2B=F+=A=t-H
At 31st December 2002 466,618 78,642 148,906 20045 233909 957,120

HER :

Representing:

R-BE-F+-A=t—-HZRHE

Reserves at 31st December 2002 466,618 78,642 148,906 29,045 206,470 929,681
“EECERRAHRE

2002 Final dividend proposed - - - - 27,439 27,439

R=%2-F+t=-A=1-H
At 31st December 2002 466,618 78,642 148,906 29,045 233,909 957,120
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
20 fREE @) 20 Reserves (continued)
b 3/
Company
B RER
(D) BFL#ES EiRES BE
Share ((b)) (&%(c)) B
premium Capital Reserve Asset REaH
account reserve funds revaluation Retained g
(note (b)) (note (b)) (note (c)) reserve earnings Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT

R=-ZZ-5-f—H

At 1st January 2001 126,101 78,642 113,462 29,045 191,472 538,722
BRAR

Issue of additional A Shares 340,517 - - - - 340,517
XEERT

Profit for the year - - - - 81,340 81,340
“EZZFERRARE

2000 Final dividend paid - - - - (34,185) (34,185)
BAREES (F()

Transfer to reserve funds (note (c)) — - 20,224 = (20,224) -

R-2Z-F¥+-A=+-H
As at 31st December 2001 466,618 78,642 133,686 29,045 218,403 926,394

HER :

Representing:

R-BE-F+-A=+-H2RAE

Reserves at 31st December 2001 466,618 78,642 133,686 29,045 181,818 889,809
“ERR-FRRRAERE

2001 Final dividend proposed = = = = 36,585 36,585

R-BZE-%+-A=+-H
At 31st December 2001 466,618 78,642 133,686 29,045 218,403 926,394
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

[
20 f##E @) 20 Reserves (continued)
E: 3/
Company
B R EE
(E(b) BFL#ES ERES BE
Share (E(b)) (i(c)) B
premium Capital Reserve Asset #REa2H
account reserve funds revaluation Retained -1 ]
(note (b)) (note (b)) (note (c)) reserve earnings Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT

R-¥T-£-A-AH
At 1st January 2002 466,618 78,642 133,686 29,045 218,403 926,394
XEEERF
Profit for the year = = =
“EZ-FERKHRE
2001Final dividend paid - - - - (36,585) (36,585)
BAREES (E()
Transfer to reserve funds (note (c)) = = 17,191 = (17,191) =
BTISEENRE 2 EAM X H (F12)
Capital expenditure of common

facilities for staff (Note 12) - - (2,179) - - (2,179)

68,014 68,014

R=2B=F+=A=t-H
As at 31st December 2002 466,618 78,642 148,698 20,045 232,641 955,644

HER :

Representing:

R-BE-F+-A=t—-HZRHE

Reserves at 31st December 2002 466,618 78,642 148,698 29,045 205,202 928,205
“EECERRAHRE

2002 Final dividend proposed - - - - 27,439 27,439

R-—ZZE-F+-A=+-H
At 31st December 2002 466,618 78,642 148,698 29,045 232,641 955,644
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20 fEfE @)

(a)

(b)

BEFEHEEBEEAREAAT
WARER(TRAAER])
BRBREBANEZEUT ZRF
2K -

(1) HWHREERE .

(@  IZEBRBIBBRFN0%E
EERGBATES - E
TEEMBRAEESSE
EEMEARN50%
ATAFERE ;

(8) REBEEFS%E
10%EEERRE

(4) EHEBRRRRREAK
SEBZERRERD
BE R

(6) EKBEBREFRR-

REEZEERSBRDE
EREERHEZE
BEZRTESE
Bl 45 3 iz o BDE E Bk
BZBRB&ER
o

EX LB RROBER

EXRNEETERTELLT
HEZELCXRARROHE
RAFEEEFHRERER
TRORAEZHE - RIDEE
RARITRERFELE X
EHRBRITRRER - RE
TEABER  BEXAQER
ERGOEERIERREM
B e

20 Reserves (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations and the
Articles of Association, profit after taxation shall be
appropriated in the following order:

(1) make up accumulated losses;

(2) transfer 10% of the profit after tax to the
statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital, such transfers need not
be made;

(3) transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after tax to the
statutory public welfare reserve;

(4) transfer to the discretionary surplus reserve an
amount approved by the shareholders in general
meetings; and

(5) distribute dividends to shareholders.

The amount transferred to the statutory surplus
reserve and statutory public welfare reserve
shall be based on the profit after taxation in the
statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
the PRC accounting standards.

Capital reserve and share premium account

Capital reserve comprises mainly surplus between the
appraised value of assets and value of shares issued
when the Company was converted from a state-owned
enterprise to a joint stock limited company. Share
premium account arose from issues of shares net of
issuing expenses. According to relevant PRC
regulations, capital reserve and share premium
account can only be used to increase share capital.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

20 f&#f@E @)

(c) fREEES

20 Reserves (continued)

(c) Reserve funds

5H

Group
EERE ZELKS FEERR
LFe (5E (ii)) LS
(£ (i) Statutory (BE(iii))

Statutory public Discretionary

surplus welfare surplus

reserve reserve reserve #E
(note (i) (note (ii))  (note (iii)) Total

ARBFL ARBMTT AREFLT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

R-Z22-%-A—-H
BRBRHER

EI&EER
Rz &
X

At 1st January 2001 49,024 22,067 42,371 113,462
Transfer from profit and
loss account 8,200 4,100 8,090 20,390

At 31st December

2001 57,224 26,167 50,461 133,852
At 1st January 2002 57,224 26,167 50,461 133,852
Transfer from profit and

loss account 6,904 3,452 6,877 17,233

Capital expenditure for
common facilities
of staff - (2,179) - (2,179)

At 31st December
2002 64,128 27,440 57,338 148,906
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
20 fREE @) 20 Reserves (continued)
(c) REESHE) (¢)  Reserve funds (continued)
F40F
Company
EERE ZELKS EERER
N (5% (ii)) LHEe
(BE(i) Statutory (BE(iii))
Statutory public Discretionary
surplus welfare surplus
reserve reserve reserve e
(note (i)) (note (ii))  (note (iii)) Total
ARBFIT ARTT AR%TT AR¥TRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=-BZT—F—H—H Atist January 2001 49,024 22,067 42,371 113,462
HRBERE Transfer from profit and
loss account 8,090 4,044 8,090 20,224
R-BE—F At 31st December
+=-HA=+-—H 2001 57,114 26,111 50,461 133,686
R=ZFZ-F—H—H AtistJanuary 2002 57,114 26,111 50,461 133,686
BERERE Transfer from profit and
loss account 6,876 3,438 6,877 17,191
BETEREAN Capital expenditure
B2 & for common facilities
X of staff = (2,179) = (2,179)
R-BE-F At 31st December
+=-H=+-—H 2002 63,990 27,370 57,338 148,698
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

20

ERRCP,

(c) RBEEZ#E

PR &E -

(0]

(i)

(iii)

AEEERIPEEERE
ZBRBLEFBI10%EEE
BRAES - EAERHA
BEeEETMELMN50%
B AR ERE - ZA%
< T FA 1A T8 16 5 1 S A B
o RTRABRHERN £
ERAZEARESR  BET
EEREMME R H25% o

EEAESE

AEEFERITPEEERE
ZBRBEFBMNE5%E10%
ERELHES - WEAEDLR
ERARAEAERATBT
EHBEANRENELRMER
o TSR TERETD
AATE - -BROABE
S EE AT S T A LUK
BAARRE o

EREHATSE

EREBRARERBEEFRA
PREREEEARETHE
A - AT RETREE R RIEM
BRAs - {BIRERSRE M RAR
RERAERBEB - EAH
BEARSTEBRRAS
REBEB -

20 Reserves (continued)

(c)

Reserve funds (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(if)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required in each year to transfer 10% of the
profit after taxation as reported under the PRC statutory
accounts to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. This reserve
can be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase
share capital. Except for the reduction of losses incurred,
any other usage should not result in this reserve balance
falling below 25% of the registered capital.

Statutory public welfare reserve

The Group is required in each year to transfer 5% to 10% of
the profit after taxation as reported under the PRC statutory
accounts to the statutory public welfare reserve. This reserve
is restricted to capital expenditure for employees' collective
welfare facilities which are owned by the Company. Except
in liquidation, the statutory public welfare reserve is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

Discretionary surplus reserve

The discretionary surplus reserve can be set up by means
of appropriation from the retained earnings or transfer from
statutory public welfare reserve. Subject to approval by
shareholders in general meetings, the reserve can be used
to reduce any losses incurred and to increase share capital.
Any transfers to the reserve also require the approval of
shareholders in general meetings.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
21 $R{ITEF 21 Bank loans
R-BE-_F+-A=+—H & At 31st December 2002, the Group's and the Company's bank
SEREATRZBITERTIEER loans were unsecured and repayable as follows:

BERAYARUT FHHEE :

RUBBITHER ERSRITHR
Long-term bank loans Short-term bank loans
PP F —_TT-HF 9P F _"=Z22-F

2002 2001 2002 2001

ARBFT AR®TRT ARMTET AR¥Tr
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

E—FR Within one year 150,000 = 190,000 182,100
$-F In the second year - 150,000 - —

150,000 150,000 190,000 182,100

118
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
22 HmEBRESARERMETE 22 Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement
(a) REBINELKETHRE (@)  Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated
FHEYEHER from operations
—ZE-F —BE-F
2002 2001
AR¥TIT AR TR
RMB'000 RMB'000
BBt Al 2 A Operating profit 80,996 98,097
BEEENE Depreciation 74,024 69,039
HEEEEE RS Gain on disposal of fixed assets (1,753) (380)
FE WA Interest income (12,527) (14,668)
FMEXH Interest expenses 14,872 18,066
RERE KA Dividend income from investments (931) (8,052)
EEESEH I LERTF Operating profit before working
capital changes 154,681 167,102
FEEMm Increase in inventories (23,085) (31,570)
FERERREE - HdERRE - Increase in trade and bill
Be BAARERTEREAD receivables, other receivables,
12 E B FKIE b deposits and prepayments,
export value-added-tax
recoverable (20,227) (65,977)
EAERRERE  HEARER Increase/(decrease) in trade and 38,093 (6,235)
PESHE R /(R 2) bills payable, other payables
and accrued charges
FE U B s R A B TR N Increase in amount due from
immediate holding company (7,145) (8,991)

RETHEEZRSTE Net cash generated from operations 142,317 54,329
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

o
22 HmERERERMET 22 Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement
(b) FARMESBDH (b)  Analysis of changes in financing during the year
BFBERNAAMREE)
Bt e Share capital PHBBRRER BITREMER
Dividends payable including premium Minority interests ~ Bank and other loans
—22°F "2E-F 88K "2E-F 98K "23-F ZBB°F “2E-F
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
ABBTT ARETFT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT AREFR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R—A—H
At 1st January - - 923,931 553,414 499 215 332,100 259,100
BEAR
Issue of additional
A Shares - - - 370,517 - - - -
SEUBRRELEA
Minority shareholders'
share of profits - - - - 56 44 - -
LHBRRREN
Advance from minority
shareholders - - - - 2,120 240 - -
HERTER
New bank loans - - - - - - 329,100 522,900
EERTREMBER
Repayment of bank
and other loans - - - - - - (321,200) (449,900)
BERRE
Dividends declared 36,585 34,185 - - - - - -
BIRRE
Dividends paid (36,585)  (34,185) - - - - - -
R+=A=+-H
At 31st December - - 923,931 923,931 2,675 499 340,000 332,100
23 RITEE 23 Banking facilities
R=ZBE-F+=-HA=+—H F£& At 31st December 2002, the Group's and the Company's bank
ERADRZBITER > BEEHD loans totalling approximately RMB210,000,000 were
AR ¥210,000,000T HE EER LD guaranteed by the immediate holding company. At 31st
AER R=TBB—F+-A=+— December 2001, the Group's and the Company's bank loans
B> AEBRKAFZBITER - £ of RMB177,100,000 and RMB150,000,000 were guaranteed
EHHARME177,100,0007TFA by a fellow subsidiary and the immediate holding company
K #150,000,0007T *© £ BIH—RE respectively.

SENEARMERZERABDER -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

24

IR

(a)

24 Commitments
B ARKIE (a) Capital commitments
(i) EEIRREEEE (i) Commitments for construction-in-progress and
A fixed assets
R=-ZZE-F+=A At 31st December 2002, the Group had the
=+—H: ' X&EBE following capital commitments principally related
EREREEYRE to the construction-in-progress and purchase of
ERBHERIRR fixed assets in respect of buildings and
BEEETEEZRE production facilities which were not provided for
BEREAREDT : in the accounts:
fuf k- —22-F
2002 2001
AR¥TIT AR TR
RMB'000 RMB'000
EEHEXREBHE Contracted but not provided for 62,220 9,700
CHtEEREHL  Authorised by the directors but not contracted 303,500 185,500
365,720 195,200

(i)

H fl iR

AEER-_ZE-F
+=-—A=+—-H8"' &
BRE-—BEDQA
70% B3 R B & A &
EzeBEAARYE
5,794,000 T (=8 &
- F AR %
5,794,000) o It B e
ARANEEEL AR
FELEEBEDEH
go

(ii)

Other commitments

The Group had capital commitment of
RMB5,794,000 to invest in a joint venture with
70% equity interests as at 31st December 2002
(2001: RMB5,794,000). The joint venture will be
engaged in production of medical intermediates
in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TRIE 7 itk 2 AT IR 2 il S A A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

24  RIE @) 24

(b) EEHEERE

i) RN="FF-F+=-A8

Commitments (continued)
(b)

Commitments under operating leases

(i) At 31st December 2002, the group had future

=+—H xEER aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
BRARE 2 RER cancellable operating leases as follows:
EMRARIZNZ&
BEEHENRERW
T:
TiREF
Land and buildings
—BP_F —BE-F
2002 2001
AR#FTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
E—FR Not later than one year 1,324 711
BE_ZEHRFR Later than one year and not later than five years 2,521 1,939
BRLE# Later than five years 265 140
4,110 2,790

R=FF=-F1+=A

(i)

At 31st December 2002, the future minimum

=+—HB  xEER rental payments receivable under non-
BRIz &&H cancellable leases are as follows:
&1 R R R WA Z &
EEEXRELBN
T:
T RiEF
Land and buildings
—ZZ-F —B2-F
2002 2001
AR%FT ARE TR
RMB'000 RMB'000
E—FR Not later than one year 1,764 =
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25 BHEEALXRS 25 Related party transactions

AEEEEREKEERNETZE Significant related party transactions, which were carried out

REBEAIRZBENT : in the normal course of the Group's business are as follows:
(a) —ZZ_f —EZ-F
2002 2001
ARETFIT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000
HIRFEBREER Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
EREELAT Group Company Limited ("SXPGC"),
EEERAH immediate holding company
- BELERRE - Purchase of land use right
in Zibo City, the PRC - 7,914
ARAERARNKEAF Fellow subsidiaries:
- HERERREREMB - Sale of finished goods and
raw materials 24,337 18,196
- BEEMH - Purchase of raw materials 75,726 55,787
- HEBA - Rental income 1,630 1,760
- ISR REMRE - Payment of labour and other services 12,156 12,156

EERA LBXBIRA
FHN-REBBREPERAB
TENBEHFMRENERMN
FRERBEHOZERZH
i B R R T AT o

REFER AQFAEE
ERATANRBEANARE
5,806,000t (—EZ—F :
AER#19,750,0007T) * ME
BEERATNREATNE
BRKREMN - BEZ=—FF=
F+=-HA=+—-8  5@ENR
BEANRKRERARY
6,874,000C (= ZZ—F :
AR #%6,038,0007T) ° th&
NEDREER  EIER
J|IEEBNHAMH -

(b)

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group at price and terms
determined according to relevant industry practice and
in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions.

During the year, the Company paid certain expenses
on behalf of its immediate holding company totalling
RMB5,806,000 (2001: RMB19,750,000), which were
charged back to the immediate holding company on
cost reimbursement basis. As at 31st December 2002,
the amount due from the immediate holding company
connection with such transactions amounted to
RMB6,874,000 (2001:RMB6,038,000) which is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of
repayment.




i B B

-lélI (#&)
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26 BAERAF 26 Ultimate holding company
ESFARARRTZBRERATR The Directors of the Company regard Xinhua Lukang
—SXRFEFMRILNEEERE Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, a state-owned limited
FEAR-FEESREXEEFRET liability company established in the PRC, as being the ultimate
AT e holding company.

27 BREBEB 27 Approval of accounts

rEEREER-FEE=F=AC
tT-EHREEESESB -

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on
21st March 2003.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

IWRFERERGERAF
E2RRERR:

BPESER BN TLURNERERHG
BRAT AT EHEIE AT 20025124
STHMEEAER * 2002FE R B K& FHE
PERNBESHER SLEEHBRAS
AFEE  AMANEXTRHELEHHRE
BREFER c ROANBTRABGEFEE
METMBLEEADNREEITH - &K
FHETEESHRENER  ITKT
EERBERATEMARALENEMENE
FF o

BMARR  LAESTHHRRFS(EESHE
AN AKEEESTHEINERRE /M8
BEAXFHEQAMKBRT EAQT2002%F124
318 B9 BT FE AR 7 2 2002 4F BE 19 48 2 B R LA
RESHERR ST EELHENRAR
&—EMEAl -

& & P et EhEH PR
FEGEMEE R®

o B = R A AT
FEdL R

BR

2003%01H30H

B BRF It IRE R R AR EHE TR 8 & E%?:%ié’:‘+86(010)65542288
/ ﬁ R~ rg\gﬁék;ﬁ C BLé 12 ;2_;: telephone: +86(010)65542288
gﬁiﬂg?( () 12th Floor, Block C, Fu Hua Mansion
- =LA BN Sh . W. No.8, Chao Yapg _Men Bei Da Jie, HHE: +86(010)6554 1612
ineywing Dong Cheng District, facsimile: +86(010)6554 1612
certified public accountants Beijing, 100027, P.R.China

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements comprising
the balance sheet of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited as at December 31, 2002, the related profit and loss account
and cash flow statement for the year then ended. The company is
responsible for the financial statements. Our responsibility is to
express an audit opinion on the financial statements. Our audit was
conducted in accordance with China Certified Public Accountants
Independent Auditing Standards and consequently included such
auditing procedures as were considered necessary and appropriate
to the company’s circumstances, including examination, on a test
basis, of the company’s transactions and accounting records.

In our opinion, the financial statements of the company referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the company at December 31, 2002, the results of its operations
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Enterprises and the Accounting
Regulations for Enterprises. The accounting policies used in the
preparation of the financial statements for the year are consistent
with those used in the preceding year.

Shine Wing CPAs
Certified Public Accountant, PRC Zhangke

Certified Public Accountant, PRC Langzheng
Beijing, PRC

January 30, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

o
&R 2002512R8318 20018128310
Assets As at 31 December 2002 As at 31 December 2001
af B4R A SN
Group Company Group Company
ARBT ARBT ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
hBEE: Current assets:
ERES Cash on hand and in bank 503,467,118.60 495,429,329.13 617,030,035.00 615,893,162.80
BoRE Short-term investment - - - -
EWZg Notes receivable 13,256,368.20 13,256,368.20 27,998,005.65 27,998,005.65
JE W ) Dividend receivable - - - -
EWFE Interests receivable - - -
RS Accounts receivable 259,552,936.20 259,552,936.20 237,698,509.31 237,698,509.31
Rt Other receivable 117,975,275.33 116,546,077.78 107,853,272.42 107,583,752.42
ARER Deposits to suppliers 3,401,774.74 3,152,474.52 3,185,242.32 3,185,242.32
BE Inventory 220,777,068.33 215,173,993.62 197,590,074.36 195,305,621.69
HHEER Deferred and prepaid expenses - - - -
-ERIHN Long term investments due
REGERE within one year - - - _
AtRBEE Other current assets - - _
TBEEAH Total current assets 1,118,430,541.40 1,103,111,179.45 1,191,355,139.06 1,187,664,294.19
ROKE: Long term investment:
RORERE Long term equity investment 55,277,318.00 63,208,974.89 55,621,022.29 57,265,167.66
REERRE Long term debenture investment 75,500.00 75,500.00 163,500.00 163,500.00
RHRELSH Total long term investment 55,352,818.00 63,284,474.89 55,784,522.29 57,428,667.66
BEEE: Fixed assets:
BEEERE Fixed assets at cost 1,085,199,625.04 1,084,485,074.04 946,246,176.69 945,774,332.69
B BHFE Less: accumulated depreciation 585,157,010.10 584,956,320.84 516,904,048.37 516,822,652.93
BEEEFE Fixed assets - net book value 500,042,614.94 499,528,753.20 429,342,128.32 428,951,679.76
B ETEE Less: Provision for
HEEE devalued fixed assets - - —
EEEERE Net value of fixed assets 500,042,614.94 499,528,753.20 429,342,128.32 428,951,679.76
IRNE Construction materials 8,558,149.83 8,558,149.83 9,150,409.83 9,150,409.83
ERIR Construction-in-progress 154,740,709.72 154,740,709.72 82,013,024.91 82,013,024.91
BEEEESH Total fixed assets 663,341,474.49 662,827,612.75 520,505,563.06 520,115,114.50
EVRERAMEE: Intangible and other assets:
EVEE Intangible assets 68,331,382.56 68,331,382.56 69,075,096.56 69,075,096.56
RESBER Long term deferred and
prepaid expenses - - - —
HthEE Other assets - - - —
ELEER Total intangible and
HthEESH other assets 68,331,382.56 68,331,382.56 69,075,096.56 69,075,096.56
BERE: Deferred taxation:
EERRBEE Debit for deferred taxation - - — _
BESH Total assets 1,905,456,216.45 1,897,554,649.65 1,836,720,320.97 1,834,283,172.91
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BEERR=T

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

EH 2002%12R318 2001128318
Assets As at 31 December 2002 As at 31 December 2001
&t BAR A SN
Group Company Group Company
ARBT ARBT ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
hBARE: Current liabilities:

BHER Short term loans 140,000,000.00 140,000,000.00 182,100,000.00 182,100,000.00

ERZE Notes payable 6,800,000.00 6,800,000.00 11,684,000.00 11,684,000.00

ERER Accounts payable 110,077,846.60 104,682,406.00 71,778,972.56 69,550,973.62

AUER Deposit from customers 6,794,110.56 6,649,110.56 10,605,600.92 10,605,600.92

ERTE Accrued payroll - - - -

ERENE Welfare and benefits payable 9,832,743.40 9,832,743.40 9,966,851.41 9,966,851.41

ERRA Dividends payable 32,574,317.50 32,574,317.50 41,678,827.38 41,678,827.38

ExB e Tax payable (22,029,554.22) (21,331,654.46) (7,744,725.44) (7,400,204.15)

At ERA Other payments - - - -

EbEMR Other payable 32,499,211.31 32,116,375.97 19,694,293.36 19,411,693.36

RIEER Accrued expenses 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,600,000.00 2,600,000.00

BHEE Forecast liabilities - - — -

—EREBH Long term loans due

REAE within one year 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 -

HtRBEE Other current liabilities - - - -
wBAFAH Total current liabilities 519,548,675.15 514,323,298.97 342,363,820.19 340,197,742.54
REAE: Long term liabilities:

REEH Long term loans - - 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00

EfES Debentures payable - - - -

ROEAR Premium on debentures

payables - - — —
At RHEE Accounts payable due
after one year 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
RUAGEAH Total long term liabilities 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 153,561,500.00 153,561,500.00
BERS Deferred taxation:

EERTEE Credit for deferred taxation - - - -
fESH Total liabilities 523,110,175.15 517,884,798.97 495,925,320.19 493,759,242.54
YERERS Minority interest 2,676,190.62 - 271,070.41 -
FEERE (RRRYR) ©  Shareholders’ equity:

[ Share capital 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00

BRDE Capital surplus 558,919,077.15 558,919,077.15 558,919,077.15 558,919,077.15

BN Surplus reserve 148,905,850.41 148,697,841.66 133,852,524.73 133,686,347.29

He: pEg including: welfare reserves 24,188,172.04 24,118,835.79 22,915,586.10 22,860,193.62

FABAE Undistributed profit 214,532,093.12 214,740,101.87 190,439,498.49 190,605,675.93
FRERS Total share capital equity

(RBRRER) S8 1,379,669,850.68 1,379,669,850.68 1,340,523,930.37 1,340,523,930.37
ARNAEIESE Capital equity
(BREER) S 1,905,456,216.45 1,897,554,649.65 1,836,720,320.97 1,834,283,172.91
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EA 20025 K 00158
Items As at 31 December 2002 As at 31 December 2001
& BAH af SN
Group Company Group Company
ARET ARET AR%TR AR%TR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
—EEEERA Income from principal operations 1,173,549,986.46 1,157,258,610.49 1,099,258,491.40 1,088,660,264.36
B IEEBRA Less: Cost of sales 858,629,236.45 847,023,403.90 766,747,318.96 759,484,822.22
TEERHS Sales tax and extra
R charges 3,188,801.11 3,013,539.28 6,615,517.62 6,563,421.23
O EEERNE Profit from principal operations 311,731,948.90 307,221,667.31 325,895,654.82 322,612,020.91
m: HEERE Add:  Profit from other operations 3,964,914.86 3,964,914.86 4,898,672.34 4,898,672.34
B EXER Less: Selling expenses 117,542,021.44 114,312,755.74 120,755,498.26 118,945,241.86
EHER General and
administrative expenses 110,616,233.88 109,887,607.06 108,552,056.82 107,822,270.28
HEER Financial expenses 2,491,471.70 2,516,914.00 2,878,106.75 2,893,478.65
= ERNA Operating profit 85,047,136.74 84,469,305.37 98,608,665.33 97,849,702.46
n: RERES Add:  Investment income 816,320.00 1,183,107.23 3,035,148.24 3,456,898.89
EEHMA Non-operating income 2,678,022.70 2,678,022.70 1,138,639.19 1,138,639.19
o EENTHE Less: Non-operating expenses 7,161,890.37 7,161,774.97 5523,884.82 5,506,787.17
b ] Profit before taxation 81,379,589.07 81,168,660.33 97,258,567.94 96,938,453.37
B FEH Less: Income tax 12,558,924.07 12,404,399.34 16,307,132.31 16,042,307.05
B OURRES Minority interests 56,404.01 - 55,289.31 -
1 BHE Profit after taxation 68,764,260.99 68,764,260.99 80,896,146.32 80,896,146.32
m:ENRIEAE  Undistributed profit at the
beginning of the year 190,439,498.49 190,605,675.93 166,518,592.59 166,518,592.59
xRS EBIE Distributable profit 259,203,759.48 259,369,936.92 247,414,738.91 247,414,738.91
B RIEE Less: Appropriation of
BBLR statutory surplus reserve 6,904,313.64 6,876,426.10 8,200,399.59 8,089,614.63
REEELHS Appropriation of
statutory welfare reserve 3,452,156.82 3,438,213.05 4,100,199.80 4,044,807.32
t EREE Profit available for distribution
PEBHA to shareholders 248,847,289.02 249,055,297.77 235,114,139.52 235,280,316.96
B RRAER Less: Appropriation of discretionary
BBLR surplus reserve 6,876,426.10 6,876,426.10 8,089,614.63 8,089,614.63
ENERRRA Defered tax debit 27,438,769.80 27,438,769.80 36,585,026.40 36,585,026.40
N £3EHA Undistributed profit 214,532,093.12 214,740,101.87 190,439,498.49 190,605,675.93
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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[
20026
L L BAE
ltems Group Company
ARET ABBT
RMB RMB

- EETHELMRARE

HEBR  RESHRINES

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of services

1,164,111,852.28

1,139,340,023.74

KENKHERE Refund of taxes and levies 21,610,000.00 21,610,000.00
WEMHEEEEIBARNES Other cash received relating to operating activities 5,597,530.11 5,587,207.04
EERHEENTERANMT Sub-total of cash inflows 1,191,319,382.39 1,166,537,230.78
BERR  BISEIANES Cash paid for goods and services 847,341,851.91 826,024,015.26
IRERINRARIZANES Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 129,491,680.62 127,526,456.12
XHNEERE Taxes paid 68,995,379.60 68,067,438.54
TRNHEEEEIBARNES Other cash paid relating to operating activities 102,776,399.57 101,626,904.44
BeIBELMRSRE G Sub-total of cash outflows 1,148,605,311.70 1,123,244,814.36
BEIBELNELRERE Net cash from operating activities 42,714,070.69 43,292,416.42
ZoREEDEEMRARE: II.  Cash flows from investing activities

WERERUENES Cash received from retum of investment 88,000.00 88,000.00
RERENEMUINES Cash received from distribution of dividends or profits 816,320.00 816,320.00
REEEEE BVEENHA Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible

ROZEFMKRENESTE assets and other long-term assets 1,317,920.00 1,317,920.00
WEMHRREEIDARNES Other cash received relating to investing activities - -
REZBELMBSRA NG Sub-total of cash inflow 2,222,240.00 2,222,240.00
BEETEE EVEENEM Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets

REEERIANES and other long-term activities 146,077,244.00 145,859,647.00
REFEMHES Cash paid to acquire investments - 5,577,020.00
IRNHHRREEIDARNES Other cash paid relating to investing activities - -
RETBELMBSRE Gt Sub-total of cash outflow 146,077,244.00 151,436,667.00
REEBELNEERETE Net cash from investing activities (143,855,004.00) (149,214,427.00)

S BEEDELNRARE: lll. Cash flows from financing activities

REREMUENRS Proceeds from issue of bonds and shares 2,119,540.00 —
BREUENES Proceeds from borrowings 299,100,000.00 299,100,000.00
WENHHREEEIBARNES Other proceeds relating to financing activities 11,872,521.32 11,872,221.32
EGTHELNBSRANG Sub-total of cash inflows 313,092,061.32 310,972,201.32

RRERFLANRE
ARRA - NEIRAAL
fixfinng

XANARRREEDAROES
BEEBEENRSRL M
BEFDELNASRERE

{ERERHRSNNE

I ReRREERNFANEG

Cash repayment of amounts borrowed

Cash payments of distribution of dividends or
profits and interest expenses

Other cash payment relating to financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash from financing activities

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

V.

Net increases in cash and cash equivalent

291,200,000.00
34,328,167.69

325,528,167.69
(12,436,106.37)

14,123.28

(113,562,916.40)

291,200,000.00
34,328,167.69

325,528,167.69
(14,555,946.37)

14,123.28

(120,463,833.67)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

o
HRER
Supplementary information:
002K
HE Ak B4F
ltems Group Company
ARET ARET
RMB RMB
1. KBHARREEE Reconciliation of net profit to cash
AORENE: flows from operating activities
BHE Net profit 68,764,260.99 68,764,260.99
m: SERREHNE Add: Minority profit 56,404.01 -
TRNEEAERR Provision 10,431,343.28 10,431,343.28
BEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 71,697,152.36 70,753,888.96
BYEEEH Amotization of intangible assets 1,837,944.00 1,837,944.00
REEEEE BVEEN Loss / (gain) on disposal of fixed assets, intangible
At REMEENBR(H « W) assets and other long-term assets (2,185,951.90) (2,185,951.90)
BEEEREEX Loss on fixed assets written off - —
BRER Financial expenses 2,491471.70 2,516,914.00
RERX (A ' k&) Loss / (gain) arising from investments (816,320.00) (979,500.22)
BEBEE (6 58) Defered tax credits (or deduct debit) — -
FEWHED (6 - Bm) Decrease / (increase) in inventories (23,187,068.33) (21,530,442.25)
BEMEWEANED (7 - Em) Decrease / (increase) in receivables (96,202,876.47) (96,648,144.39)
BEREMERNEN(H  BD) Increase / (decrease) in payables 9,827,711.05 10,332,103.95
BETHELNRSRETE Net cashflows from operating activities 42,714,070.69 43,292,416.42
2 THROGHIHEE Investing and financing activities
hERED that do not involve cash
NEEEEREEY Repayment of debts by transfer of fixed assets - -
NREREEK Repayment of debts by transfer of investment - -
NECEERTRE Investments in the form of fixed assets - —
NEEREEE Repayment of debts by transfer of inventories - -
3. BERASEEMIEMER: Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
ReMBAHE Cash at end of the period 503,467,118.60 495,429,329.13
B ReNBNRE Less: cash at beginning of the period 617,030,035.00 615,893,162.80
n:ReSENNBRGE Add: cash equivalents at end of the period - -
WoRSEENNAIRE Less: cash equivalents at beginning of the period — -
ReRBeSENIENE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (113,562,916.40) (120,463,833.67)

130



(1RIF 1 I o it U i )
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Bt RERE
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(FEEBEEEZHENUAREF T RER)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

DNEERER 1

WRFEREROGERAIT(TE
[ZADTF]) E1993FE HILRHFER
B RAIRA - 1996F 124K F
DEBE i ABEARTHEA
BREMBEHBRRE - 1997F78 KD
FEUFEYE Ev o AERITHE
ARHEMBEARKSE - 1998511 A
BAZEARANBEYHNIESKES
EBHER  BANFTRERNDE
PR E] o 200159 A B #t AL AR
LiEIRES, 0008 - AFREIFRE
B 300E B -

HZ2002%F12H831H » AT
MBEXAEARKAST7I1ET  BAE
Pyl N

General Background

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the
“Company”), a listing company, was established in 1993 as
the result of the reorganization of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Factory. In December 1996, the Company
issued its H Shares of the People’s Republic of China on Hong
Kong Security Exchange. In July 1997, the Company listed
it's A Shares of the People’s Republic of China on Shenzhen
Security Exchange. In November 1998, the Company became
a foreign investment joint stock limited company which is
approved by the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation of the PRC. In Sept. 2001, the company
increased 30 million ordinary A shares after approval and at
the same time decreased 3 million state shares.

As at 31 December 2002, the registered capital of the
Company was RMB 457.31 million and the capital structure
of the Company for the year ended of 31 December 2001 is
as follows:

B i 888 [ 54 ] 14 ]
Number of shares

outstanding Amount Percentage

Iy State shares 214,440 214,440 46.89%
HEZEAR Legal-persons shares 16,720 16,720 3.66%
HEARHR General public H shares 150,000 150,000 32.80%
HEARAR General public A shares 76,153 76,153 16.65%
&t Total 457,313 457,313 100%

ARFAEBREME RENEE
EBRBE  RER{CIER

BELRENERTEENS T
(2001)647SE X HHVIB Al - AR T
BIAASFRWEE-

N2 B R 4 FE LU SROH 18 T S TR
MEXRBRELIE -

The principle business of the Company is to develop, produce
and sell bulk pharmaceutical, preparations and other
chemicals products.

According to the circular of “Lu Ke Gao Zi (2001) No. 647"
issued by the Shandong Science & Technology Bureau, the
company has been recognized as a High-tech company.

The Company is located in ShanDong Zibo High-tech Industry
Development Zone.
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Basis of presentation of financial
statements

2.1.

2.2.

2.2.1.

22.2.

The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with the Accounting Standards for
Enterprises and the Accounting Regulations of Joint
Stock Limited Companies issued by the Ministry of
Finance.

The consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements, comprising the
consolidated accounts of the Company and its
subsidiary which the Company controls more than half
of the issued share capital, or controls less than half
of the issued share capital, but possess of the right of
management.

The consolidated financial statements has been
prepared in accordance with Provisional Regulation of
Consolidating Financial Statement and relevant
supplementary regulations. All significant transactions
and balances between the Company and its subsidiary
are eliminated upon consolidation.

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate

3.1.

3.2

Accounting period

The accounting period of the Company is from 1
January to 31 December of the calendar year.
Accounting principle and basis of valuation

The financial statements have been prepared on an

accrual basis and the various assets are valued at
historical cost unless otherwise indicated.
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EHREEMEEHR
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2 BERABRE K
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HRE BRESH
BRANEEEARE
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

Recording currency

The Company uses RMB as its recording currency.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into RMB at the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’s Bank of China on the first day of the
month in which the transaction occurred. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
into RMB at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are
included in the operating results.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term (usually referring to
those due within three months from the purchasing
date), highly liquid investment that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Short-term investment

3.6.1. Short-term investments are recorded at cost on
acquisition. Cash dividends that are declared
but not received, and interest on bonds due but
not received are separately recorded as
receivables and are not included in the cost of
the short-term investments.
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3. FERHHEMEFEME 3 Principal Accounting Policies and
(&) Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.6. EHRERERLE) 3.6. Short-term investment (continued)

3.6.2. EHIREWERAR
% EHRESEEY
BATWZ R F ~ F
BZWE FTREA
BREWE - EHE
REBAER - HE
SHBREFRESHNE
FoRmEEHRER
[ERERER SO E N €]
WESTAEKERN
BRF - MEZHNE
B EAREWER
BXx st AEHE

3.6.2. Cash dividends and interest on short-term
investments during the holding period are netted
off against the book value of the investment (as
a return of the investment cost) when received,
except for those recorded as receivables.

RmER - SHREH
RELKEREE AR
RN —RIRER
RETRKEREE -

2% o

3.6.3. HHREKEEEN 3.6.3. Short-term investments are stated at the lower
EREEMGRES of cost and market value at the end of the
% ARQATHREE accounting period. Provision for the impairment
MR EREAETE in value of short-term investments is determined
BENRAGE B by using the comparison method, and the
HREHRERES resulting gain or loss on investment is

recognized in the current period.

3.7. BEWRIHEREBIAZESE 3.7. Provision for bad debts

3.7.1. MERMNBRAFENZK

3.7.1. The confirmation of bad debts: debtor went

Bk aBEBEMN
By WE - BETE
B -BEREBET
B BREBEAARK
ELEREEMET
T8 B R B A R B
HEEZ  b.EBKE
B RBITHEHES
EHBIBIE ; c. HFE
BXERPEEEE
Wi =] =% Uk =AY T RE
K o

bankrupt, died or liquidation, debts cannot be
collected even with the all the bankruptcy estate
or heritage, and other receivables that had been
confirmed to be bad or nearly bad when the
debtor fail to pay back over 3 years. Such
receivables are considered to be bad debts.
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3.7.2.

RRERNKESR
L ARTFRERERK
RRAGEEIRE - 8
KREERER DL R
RREE SFAEH
B  HHRARES
BERAREEZND
HEWRIE XD
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HERIERRRE
X HPEREAER
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FE W B KR AR 2 M 5T
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BiR3F 100%
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3

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.7.

Provision for bad debts (continued)

3.7.2. Allowance method was adopted to deal with bad

debts. The bad debts were withdrawn by the
company after concrete valuation for those
unreceivables. The proportion of bad debts
withdrawal is as follows:

Aging

Overdue within one year 0.5%
Overdue for 1-2 years 10%
Overdue for 2-3 years 20%

Overdue for more than 3 years 100%
The provision of the other receivables is made
in accordance with the policy of the accounts
receivables except the major transactions with
the related parties.
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3.8.1.

3.8.2.

3.8.3.
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3 Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.8. Inventories

Inventories, comprising mainly raw materials, work-in-
progress and finished goods, are stated at cost.

3.8.1.

3.8.2.

3.8.3.

The cost of raw materials includes all purchase
cost, transportation, loading and unloading and
insurance, in bringing the raw materials to the
present location and condition. As to the self-
made semi-products and finished goods, their
costs include the actual costs of direct materials,
direct labor and manufacturing overheads.

The cost of raw materials used and the sale of
finished goods are determined on a weighted
average basis.

Low values consumables and the packaging
materials are accounted as expense and
production cost when issued.
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3

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.8.

Inventories (continued)

3.8.4. The provision for loss on realization of inventory

is determined on an individual basis whenever
the cost of inventory items exceeds its net
realizable value. When inventories are
damaged, partially or fully become obsolete or
their selling price falls below cost and, as a
result, their costs exceed their net realizable
value, then the excess of their original costs
over their net realizable value is considered as
a “provision for loss on realization of
inventories”. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to conclude the sale.
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3

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.9.

Long-term investment

Long-term investment includes long-term debt
investments and long-term equity investments.

3.9.1. Long-term equity investments

3.9.1.1. Long-term equity investments are recorded at

initial cost on acquisition. Long-term
investments are recorded by using cost method
where all these investments constitute less than
20% of the capitals of the invested enterprises,
or as the Company has no significant influence
while it holds 20% or more than 20% of the
voting capital of the invested company. The
equity method is applied when the Company
holds 20% or more of the voting capital of the
invested company, or has significant influence
when it holds less than 20% of the capitals of
the invested company.

3.9.1.2. The equity investment difference should be

amortized on a straight-line based on the
contract period. If the investment period is not
stipulated in the contract, the excess of the
investment cost over the investor’s share of
owners’ equity of invested enterprise should
generally be amortized over a period of not more
than 10 years. The shortfall of investment cost
over the investor’'s share of owners’ equity of
the invested enterprise should generally be
amortized over a period of not less than 10
years.
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3. FEFFTHERMEMAE

(1) 3  Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)
39. REBRERESE#E)

3.9. Long-term investment (continued)
392 REE#ERSE
3.9.2. Long-term security investment
3921 REEERKRENTE

MpEERAEE R 3.9.2.1. The cost of long-term security investment

HMEERERINEGR acquired by cash is the total price paid on
WEBRRARERDH acquisition, including incidental expenses such
RENAE  UXHH as taxes and handling charges. However,
SHBHNREESHKR unpaid interest on bonds which has been
& REBXZTNZ accrued and are therefore included in the price
B8 FORL & 5 R AL paid, should be accounted for separately as

MESFE - ERHD
BREKAK - REE
ERERERREH
R AR B ET R B ST R
B RAREWES -

3922 EEREREMFTE

HEHTE  AQF

receivable items.

BESFREDKRE 3.9.2.2. Premium or discount on investment in bonds
BREBEHBERAR should be amortized over the period between
2R EHE R E the acquisition date and the maturity date in
B & 25 FIl 2R R 2 which the relevant bond interest is recognized.

HNESRE®  H
BEEEHEZEAHNE

Amortization method is used on a straight-line
method.

B ERESEER
E EE5FES
AR R AR B R B
AR BESZEDH
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3

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.9. Long-term investment (continued)

3.9.2.

3.9.2.3.

Long-term security investment (continued)

Impairment of Long-term investments: in case
the recoverable amount of any investment is
lower than the carrying amount of that
investment as a result of a continuing decline
in market value or changes in operating
conditions of the invested enterprise, and there
is no hope of recovery in the foreseeable future,
then the difference between recoverable
amount and the long-term investment book
value would be recorded as impairment of Long-
term investments.

3.10. Fixed assets and Construction in progress

3.10.1.

3.10.1.1.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets include buildings and
constructions, machinery equipment, electronic
apparatus and office equipment and motor
vehicles. Fixed assets refer to the production
and operation of the Company with useful lives
of over one year, also include other main
equipment with individual values of over
RMB2,000 and using lives in excess of 2 years.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.10. Fixed assets and Construction in progress
(continued)

3.10.1. Fixed assets (continued)

3.10.1.2. The fixed assets are recorded at initial cost. The
cost of the fixed assets purchased or
constructed by the Company include the price
and relevant taxes and other expenses for
operating. The fixed assets invested by the
investors are recorded at their approved values.

3.10.1.3. Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their expected useful
lives , and classified by items. The useful lives
are:

BERRTERDOT :
x5 e F IR FiEE
Expected Depreciation
Useful lives Rate
FEEEZEY 155 6.67%
Buildings & constructions 15 Years 6.67%
HERRE 105 10%
Machinery equipment 10 Years 10%
ETER 1045 10%
Electronic apparatus 10 Years 10%
MOARBEREBATA 105 10%
Office equipment and motor vehicles 10 Years 10%
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3 Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.10. Fixed assets and Construction in progress
(continued)

3.10.1. Fixed assets (continued)

3.10.1.4. For those fixed assets that are already devalued

(1)

(2)

©)

(4)

(as a result of excessive functions, leave
unoperated for a long time, replacement value
drop significantly, yield of the fixed assets lower
than normal capital yield etc), the margin
between the discountable value and the book
net value would be the provision for devalued
fixed assets. Full amount will be withdrawn
under any of the following situations:

the market values of the fixed assets has
declined significantly during the period and it is
not expected to recover during the remaining
expected useful period;

Fixed assets will not be used because of the
progress in technique and being damaged;

Fixed assets will not be used because of the
assets had been restructured, disposed or
suspended business;

Significant adverse change in operating
environment, such as technology, marketing,
economic and legal environment;
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.10. Fixed assets and Construction in progress
(continued)

3.10.1.

()

3.10.2.

Fixed assets (continued)

Receivable amount of fixed assets decreased
by marketing rate great increasing;

Other fixed assets that could not bring any
economic profit.

Construction in progress

3.10.2.1. The construction in progress is stated at cost.

Cost comprises original cost of plant and
equipment, installation, construction and other
direct costs stated at cost of acquisition or
construction of buildings, plant and machinery
as well as the capitalized interests for the loans
borrowed and exchange differences arising
during the construction.

3.10.2.2. Construction in progress is transferred to the

fixed assets account and the accrual of
depreciation commences from next month when
the asset has been substantially completed and
reaches the expected usable condition.
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3 Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.10. Fixed assets and Construction in progress
(continued)

3.10.1. Fixed assets (continued)

3.10.2.3. The company conducts a through inspection for

(1)

(2)

3)

the all the constructions in progress at each
yearend. Provision for devalue of the
construction in progress will be withdrawn when
one of or some of the following situations occur:

Suspended for a long time and will not be
restarted for construction in the forseeable 3
years;

The construction had been dropped behind in
terms of function and technique, and there is
great uncertainness in bringing economic profit
to the company;

Other situations proving that the construction
in progress had been devalued.
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3>

(&)

3.11.

3.11.1.

1)

2)

3)

3.11.2.
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3 Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.11.

3111

3.11.2.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs includes interests, amortization
of premium or discount, ancillary costs incurred
and exchange differences incurred in
connection with specific borrowings obtained for
the acquisition or construction of fixed assets.
In case the borrowing costs meet the following
three conditions, they should be capitalized:

as costs of the assets beginning when the
capital expenditures;

and borrowing costs have been incurred;

and the activities to enable the assets to reach
their expected usable condition have
commenced.

The capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the construction in progress has reached
the asset’s expected usable condition.
Borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognized as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

145



E 'Iél'-l- #E § %‘I ﬁ (&) (R o1 0 1 A A7 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

(FEEGZETHENUARE T LREN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB'000)

3+ EEEHBEMGH

(&
/ 3 Principal Accounting Policies and
3.12. B EESERBYS = Accounting Estimate continued)
3N BMEEENGTES 3.12. Valuation and amortization of intangible assets

% BEEERIRSE
B REBRARG 3.12.1. Intangible assets are recorded at initial cost on
E-BANERE acquisition. Intangible assets purchased are
E RERIANE recorded at initial cost; Those invested by
MIERBBEE ; & investors are recorded at their approved values;
EERANELE Research and development costs are
B BRRESIBRA recognized as an expense as incurred,
WEEFEREBEK registration, legal fees and other related fees
X BITHBYIEE incurred in order to legally register proprietary
EEFRFENENE technologies are capitalized.

KEE  BREEEE
RBENEME B
FERABSERER
BREENERX
o EMRERBRE
BRBEENHME T
BERHEMERAEE
AEHES -

3122 B EERKE T EMN
R BEFEEBER

SERRERENER 3.12.2. The intangible assets of the Company include
FIR - cRBENS land use right, proprietary technologies, etc. The
HmERNEEREN land use right is amortized by using straight-
ERER=FHPRE line method over 50 years; The house use right
Eo BT - 5 are amortized using straight-line method over
AEHIER - &R 22 years; Software use right are amortized
ZEHURBEEER straight-line method over 5 years on their
B BEFRIER beneficial period.

(03 NG I OF 3

BEESALHER

- ERE - kZ2F
Pt E AR E
ERSOFEHE  EER
FRHERENSRST
PR22GFHEEY > B
ARZREASHEER
SEHEH o
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3 Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.12. Valuation and amortization of intangible assets
(continued)

3.13.

3.12.3. If any one or several of the following

(1)

(2)

circumstances is discovered, and when the
recoverable amount of any intangible assets is
lower than book values, the difference between
recoverable amount and the intangible assets
book value would be recorded as provision for
impairment:

the intangible assets is replaced by other new
technologies that adversely affect its ability to
generate economic benefits;

the market values of the intangible assets has
declined significantly during the period and it is
not expected to recover during the remaining
amortization period;

the legal protection period was expired, but with
partial usable value;

other sufficient circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the intangible assets
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from sales of goods is recognized when the
enterprise has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
enterprise retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
the relevant amount of revenue and costs can be
measured reliably; it is probably that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
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AATNERTFATSERR
BHRERARERI3% -
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enterprise.

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate continued)

3.14.

3.15.

Income Tax

Tax payable method is used in the company.

Principal Taxation

The rates of the principal taxation are as follows:

3.15.1. Income tax

Since the company is registered in ShanDong Zibo
High-tech Industry Development Zone, according to
relevant tax policies by the State Council, the income
tax for the company is 15% starting from 2002.

The subsidiaries are subjected to 33% income tax rate.

3.15.2. Value added tax

The Company is subject to value added tax. The rate
for domestic sales is 17% and the rate for export sales
is 0%.

Input VAT from purchase of raw materials can be netted
off against output VAT from sales.

VAT payabile is the net difference between output VAT
and input VAT.
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3 FEEFBEMGMAE
(#)
3 Principal Accounting Policies and
3.15. BiIE (&) Accounting Estimate continued)
3153 WEBIRBEEM N 3.15. Principal Taxation (continued)

3.153. City Maintenance Construction Tax and

ARRHEBMBE EM M Education Additional Expenses

HUEAIEER - EXHE

AT BkE  BRABES A City maintenance construction tax and education

B7%HM3% ° additional expenses will be levied at 7% and 3%
respectively as payable turnover tax.

3154, BE®

AARUEEREMNT0%E 3.154. Real Estate Tax

ARGk E O BARES

1.2% ° The real estate tax will be levied at 1.2% as 70% of

the cost of real estate.
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4~ ERFAF
AATWERFLATIABTRAOT : 4. Subsidiaries
LEER BEMES #ELE BRLA TERE fRiE
Registered Invested Principal

Name Capital Amount Ratio Business Comment
HEFEREERRAR 200BTAR®E  176BRARY 88%  HREBE “
Zibo Xinhua Pharm. Co., Ltd. RMB2,000K RMB1,760K Pharmaceutical retail
MENE=NCIERAT 508 % BBET 70% - BETERELCIER

Wit £ENHE )
Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical Co.,Ltd USD500K USD350K Pharmaceutical & Chemical

research, production and sales

HENERERTRARAR 200BETAR®E  180BRAR® 90%  BEIRRK *3
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute RMB2,000K RMB1,800K Pharmaceutical project design
BENHERBEAEEERAT BOETARE  6ETARY 60%  ER3ZE *4
Dezhou Xinhua Pharm. Co., Ltd. RMB600OK RMB360K Pharmaceutical retail
REFEAEERRAA WETARE 4770BTARY 5%  HEmEBE *5
Dongying Xinhua Pharm. Co., Ltd. RMB9I00K RMB477K Pharmaceutical retail
BRHEXEERRAA NETARYE 1650BTARY 5%  HREBE *6
Weifang Xinhua Pharm. Co., Ltd. RMB300K RMB165K Pharmaceutical retail

*1

2

*3

MEHERBEERQIARILRA
1999478 > AAARMILRHEE
HEBERETATHARBEAE
RaMERBARE1008 T * 2002
FOARAFEMELRFR2008 T
ARY  AARHEILRHFTEBREES
BHREEATNREL G B 588%
F12%

MEFE=MNCIEARIARILR
20026108 - AR AT EBARHKR
ERHRREH  AE=ECITH M
RERATHEAHEAE  FMEE
R50BET HESHRELHS
BE70% » 25% ~ 5% °

MEFEBERHRERAARIR
2002538 » HAD B LR ERE
EEEERAGAAREELRE T
BEXHB200BTARY  HESHK
FELL B 2 Bl 5 90%F10% ©

The detailed list of subsidiaries is as follows:

*1

*2

*3

Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was registered on July, 1999,
the registered capital is contributed by the Company and Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd, which hold 88% and 12% of the
registered capital, respectively. The original registered capital is RMB
1,000K. On September, 2002, the registered capital is increased to
RMB2,000K.

Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical Co.,Ltd. was set up on October, 2002
by the Company, Japan Gonghe Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd and Beijing
Santian Chemical Tech. Co., Ltd., which hold 70%, 25% and 5% of
the registered capital, respectively. The original registered capital is
USD500K.

Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute was set up on March,
2002 by the Company and Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.,
which hold 90% and 10% of the registered capital, respectively. The
original registered capital is RMB2,000K.
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by A N=INE )

4. Subsidiaries continued)

*4 EMNFERBEREEFRDRRILR
2001488 » HAAAWERF AR
T EREEFRATMLREM *4 Dezhou Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was set up on August, 2001
REEEERATNARHEARE 5 & by Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. - one of the subsidiaries of
MELAROBRTARY  HEES the Company and Sangdong Dezhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which
BRAEL 65 Bl %60%F40% © hold 60% and 40% of the registered capital, respectively. The original
registered capital is RMB600K.
*5 REHFERBEARAARIR
2002% 38 - MARANERF AR
MEREREEBRATDMNRETE *5 Dongying Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was set up on March, 2002
FREHRERETAARBLEEAR by Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. - one of the subsidiaries of
# > AMEXRRBIOBETARYE the Company and Dongying Lanjing Tech.Co., Ltd., which hold 53%
B &R D Bl R53%FM47% ° and 47% of the registered capital, respectively. The original registered
capital is RMB900K.
6 WO HFERBEARAARIR
20025128 * HARARANWERFQ
T EMERBEERA TN LRE “6 Weifang Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was set up on March, 2002
EBEERAFDARBELARE I by Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. - one of the subsidiaries of
EXRIOBLARYE  HESHRE the Company and Sangdong Kangda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which
Lt Bl 3 Bl % 55% M 45% © hold 55% and 45% of the registered capital, respectively. The original
registered capital is RMB300K.
EBES
2002.12.31 2001.12.31
RE Cash on hand 42 26
BT Cash in bank*1 503,425 617,004
&t Total 503,467 617,030
1 HARBITERPEE : (NETED 5 Cash
177X530,467.78% T ; Q)ETEH
17729,028,308.36 % T ; (3% * 1 Including :
423,666.3178% o FMSMEFR
A B #2002F12A3BARBHT 2 (1) adeposit of USD 530,467.78.
T EERRNAARERM  H
WRTERS.2773 BMER (2)  afixed deposit of USD 29,028,308.36 .
1.0611 °
(3) a deposit of HKD23,663.31.
2 R HRHD18.40% » TERE

RAFEMTIRIN -

*2

Above foreign currency deposits are stated in RMB at the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China on 31 December
2000. The rate of USD was 8.2773 and that of HKD was 1.0611. The

end of the period’s is 18.40% less than the beginning of the period’s,
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6 EBHREE

mainly because of the increased project costs.

2002.12.31 2001.12.31

BEALER
RITERLER

&t

Trade notes receivable 2,000 8,000
Bankers notes receivable 11,256 19,998
Total 13,256 27,998

*1

*2

ERRENEHBE %2003F6 AN
% BER - BREANBHER-

EUREHRBEHHRESD52.66%
TERARAFENRTHEDRE
BEE WINEREERD It
S BETEERNERENTEE
HEE SEERRUEENERE
A o

7~ FBUWERFK

6 Notes receivable

*1

2

Notes receivable which are bankers’ notes receivable with no pledge,

no discount and not overdue. The maturity date is after June 2003.

The end of the period’s is 52.66% less than the beginning of the
period’s, mainly because of the part of unmatured notes receivable

endorsed to suppliers.

:4:1] IR R te Bl RIRER

Provision for Provision for

2002.12.31 Proportion  Bad debts  2001.12.31 Proportion Bad debts

—EHR Within 1 year 233,336 87.90% 1,167 217,288 89.4% 1,065
-ZZf§ 1 year to 2 years 17,691 6.67% 1,769 15,687 6.45% 1,569
—E=f§ 2 years to 3 years 14,327 5.40% 2,865 9,197 3.78% 1,839
=ENE Over 3 Years 100 0.03% 100 892 0.37% 892
&t Total 265,454 100% 5,901 243,064 100% 5,365

*1

*2

*3

BMABEF AR AR EMXS TR
$70,105F T - K IR R EREELL
B1526.41% °

REERBEAD WG TEE D3
FLEEWERRR9,361F T ©

ERRRTEFERQAS% R L
RAERDHORREAHRK

7  Accounting receivable

*1

2

*3

The balance of the top five account receivables is 70,105 K, is about
26.41% of the balance of Dec.31,2002.

The amount of 9,361K which the company had written-off the accounts

receivables over 3 years .

There was no account receivables due from shareholders who hold
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H At FE UK

5% or more of the Company’s shares.

Other recejvable "
L S CoRER KA RERE
Provision for Provision for
proportion  Bad debts  2001.12.31 proportion Bad debts
—FEHUR Within 1year 69.87% 4 103,980 95.8% 45
-EZF 1 year to 2 years 27.84% 247 301 0.29% 30
—ZE=f 2 years to 3 years 0.08% 19 3,989 3.91% 342
=FNE Over 3 years 2.21% 828 0 0% 0
& Total 100% 1,135 108,270 100% 417
1 Hitt KR S ERANER B :

*4

BUH ORB41,429F 5T » 15
34.78% ; BRHETEARMWHE
B HhEMARIE24,409F T © 14
20.47% ; FEREBFT85i8,226 F 7t -
166.91% °

Bl IEHRTERFERFE - BlE
[ 23 ) A0 HL At A Bt A B OB K PR R Y
BIRGRE - BRMBES - KRS
HEAFRSH - ERHERNAERE
E - BRRBRDBRSRRERE
Mk E - B R RERERS -

BMABEFRRAEREM SR
%61,308F 7T » 1 Hfth TR &R 2R
LBl B51.47%

H A B WO R 5 A 2 F146.89% IR 12
MR ERB A R6,868F T
HR3 - WBLTBERIS °

*1

*2

*3

*4

Other receivables in a great amount include: export drawback
41,429K, taking up 340.78%; XinHua Industry Trade Company sales
of rejected products 24,409K, occupying 23.58%; income tax return

8,226K, occupying 6.91%.

The interest receivable for the fixed deposit with Industrial &
Commercial Bank of China, Zibo Branch, receivables from Group
Company and related parties, and receivable unrefunded tax, etc.

are not made provision, as they are collectable when due.

The balance of the top five account receivables is 61,308K, is about
51.47% of the balance of Dec.31,2002.

The balance of one of the stockholders, Xinhua CO.LTD, which holds
46.89% shares of the Company is 6,868K.
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9 FAMER

;4.7 Bl

2002.12.31 Ratio % 2001.12.31 ratio %

—FHURA Within 1 year 3,062 89.20% 2,907 91.3%
—E=fF 1 year to 2 years 71 2.26% 4 0.13%
—E=F 2 years to 3 years 3 0.10% 14 0.44%
=FHE Over 3 years 266 8.44% 260 8.13%
ast Total 3,402 100% 3,185 100%

" iR —F U ERBENBENRRER 9 Deposits to suppliers
RMRGEEOHBR -

*1 Uncollected deposit that had been outstanding for more than one
2 BANRRPESERDRA%R UL

RAERDHOBRREAHRK

year is mainly the accessory material fund.

2 There was no deposits to suppliers due from shareholders who hold
1 O N ﬁji 5% or more of the Company’s shares.

B (R 4 0 BREEE

Reserve Reserve

against against

declining declining

2002.12.31 in price  2001.12.31 in price

B Raw materials 26,718 0 31,028 0

EEM Work in progress 76,872 0 69,378 0

ERm Finished goods 102,081 321 85,875 367

EFER Goods in stock 5,603 0 2,284 0

KES M@ Low value articles 8,116 0 7,684 0
SERBEDE Special materials

for Government 1,708 0 1,708 0

&5t Total 221,098 321 197,957 367
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i B oo

RHARE 10 Inventories
11.1. RERE 11 Long-term investments
2001.12.31 BEEH FHam FHED 2002.12.31 AERH
Opening Closing
Balance Impairment Increased Decreased Balance Impairment
RERERZE  Stock investment 55,621 0 344 55,277 0
REBERE  Securities Investment 164 0 88 76 0
&t Total 55,785 0 432 55,353 0
RORERE :
11.1. Long-term investments include:
RRE
DA NwRE - git RS 4
BRENAER REHR  EALA &8 Exaz Exaz HREBE REER BEER
The % of Initial Current  Accumulated
period of  ownership investment equity equity Closing Closing Opening
Name of Company investment held amount  adjustment  adjustment balance  impairment  impairment
ARRSEREELA &8 1.46% 30,000 0 0 30,000 0 0
Tianton Securities Co. Long-term
AEERBAR 3 0.25% 7,000 0 0 7,000 0 0
Pacific insurance Co. Long-term
LRBFHERDERAR R 5.50% 1,500 0 0 1,500 0 0
Sandong Huanzhong Long-term
Pharm. Co.
RO BENEREFRAR 508 6.4% 3,200 0 0 3,200 0 0
Jinrui Sifang Inves. Co. 50 years
RERIT RE 13,577 0 0 13,577 0 0
Communication Bank Long-term
&t Total 55,277 0 0 55,277 0 0
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12 EEEE

11.2. Long-term stock investments include:

N
EEREN BRRGE EWIR ETES #at
Building& Machinery Motor
construction equipment Vehicle Apparatus Total
BORE Cost 2001.12.31 270,672 641,705 23,223 10,646 946,246
meAREEM Additions 20,385 124,334 984 3,253 148,956
Ho ERIEEA Include: transferred from CIP 10,508 93,581 0 0 104,089
B RERD Disposal 0 7,991 1,776 236 10,003
BRRE 2002.12.31 291,057 758,048 22,431 13,663 1,085,199
BYRHTE Accumulated depreciation 2001.12.31 148,426 347,528 10,977 9,973 516,904
e RE R Additions 14,725 52,001 1,760 3,211 71,697
A RERD Disposal 0 1,749 1,473 222 3,444
HRRHTE 2002.12.31 163,151 397,780 11,264 12,962 585,157
BIORE Net value at 31 December 2001 122,246 294,177 12,246 673 429,342
BRFE Net value at 31 December 2002 127,906 360,268 11,167 701 500,042
“ REHEHENERRER16,820
Fre 12 Fixed assets
2 MAREEERAERER - RitRA “ The original value of the leased houses is 16,820K.
BEEE -
{m |
13» E E L *E *2 At the end of the period there is no devaluation for the fixed assets

and no provision had been withdrawn.

2002.12.31 2001.12.31

HEZER Construction projects 154,741 67,653
IRER Prepayments 0 14,360
a% Total 154,741 82,013
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13 BETRE #@)
13 Construction in progress

13.1. EZEEBHMA
13 Construction in progress continued)
IR%A BAEE LiES Rt
FNRE  FMRN  KEE AR IBEBE 2 WeRE IBRR IREE RIRRH
Include:
Opening transferred Transferred  Closing Capital  Project Project
balance  Addition toFA toothers  balance resources  budget progress
HRREE HE BRI 2002-6
Caffeine expansion project 11,423 4,946 6,477 Self-owned Completion
SURE HE BRI 2002-12
Hydrogen 3,141 2,061 1,080 Self-owned Completion
ZNEIR R BRI 2002-12
Analgin Project 21,799 25,201 47,000 Raisedfund 39,800 Completion
GaR HE 2003-4
Comprehensive Building 8,540 85 8,625  Self-owned 5,500 To be finished
on April 2003
O LN HA BRI 2002-12
Tiny Powder Centre 2,531 4,469 7,000 Self-owned 2,000 Completion
FEEWHEIR R 2003-10
Caffeine project 3,620 55,435 59,055 Raised fund 160,000 To be finished
on October 2003
ESELE HE 2003-10
SanAn Project 7,845 7,845  Self-owned To be finished
on October 2003
ZZIE BE 2003-4
Dormitory Building 21,599 21,599 Self-owned To be finished
on April 2003
% BEERIXA 15,137 15,137 BA
Westen Xinhua Industry Zone Self-owned
2 (REERIXE HE
Easten Xinhua Industry Zone 9,045 9,045  Self-owned
FHERR HE 2003-6
Packaging Project 4,250 4,250  Self-owned To be finished
on June 2003
AEETMPEEIR BE 20039
TMP expansion Project 2,818 2,818 Self-owned To be finished
on September 2003
RNEATREIR HE 2003-5
Anagin project Supplement 2,432 2,432 Self-owned To be finished
on May 2003
L-350 I R 2003-4
L-350 Project 10,821 10,821 Raised fund To be finished
on April 2003
Rt HE
Other projects 16,599 46,400 32,261 6,804 23,935 Self-owned
At
Total 67,653 205538 104,089 14361 154,741
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13- BEIRE @)

14 ~

13.1. EFEEBEEHHME)

1

13
ERIRKEREEER
FEEARERBNER o

13.1. Detailed list of construction projects

Construction in progress (continued)

13.1. Detailed list of construction projects (continued)

*2 MAEZIRERERR | Special loan is not used for the construction-in-progress and
A b R FHR R E 2 - there is no capitalisation interests.
*3 ERIBHARBBMEN *2 At the end of the period there is no devaluation for CIP and
88.68% ' XERHMRLEF no provision had been withdrawn.
CEHINERENHREIR
TERAKREBES  BE— *3 The end of the period’s is 88.68% more than the beginning
LW IREE hEHEET of the period’s, mainly because of the cost of Caffeine project
WRAES and other new projects have great increased.
BEERE
EEERE LIuERAE BREERA#E &t
Building Land use Software
use rights rights access Total
Ria&HE Cost 612 76,363 867 77,842
I RE The original cost
on 1 January, 2002 556 68,519 0 69,075
HYRsTE Accumulated amortization
on 1 January, 2002 56 7,844 0 7,900
ZHHE Addition 0 226 867 1,095
T Amortization 27 1,645 165 1,837
HRRsTE#E Accumulated amortization
on 31 December, 2002 83 9,489 165 9,737
KEEE Charge for the year 0 0 0 0
HIRERE Net value on
31 December 2002 529 67,100 702 68,331
FIABHFR The last of the year
of the amortization 21 43 4
* EREEHARERERREE  Ait
R RBERER o 14 Intangible assets
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15 BEAE R

*1 At the end of the period there is no devaluation for Intangible assets

and no provision had been withdrawn.

FHE
2002.12.31 2001.12.31  Monthly Interest
EHER Secured loans 0 0 0
BRAEX Guaranteed loans 10,000 177,100 5.31%
FEREX Trusted loans 130,000 5,000 3.51%-5.04%
&ast Total 140,000 182,100
*1 ALRFERESEEERET AR
REHK10,000F 7T © 15 Short term loans
"2 REARBBHEBE - *1 The Guaranteed loans is guaranteed by Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited is 10,000 K .
LER Y Z= 11
16~ B RE
2 There is no loan that was not cleared off on maturity days.

2002.12.31 2001.12.31

BEERER
RITERAER

Trade notes payable 4,800 0
Bankers’ notes payable 2,000 11,684
Total 6,800 11,684

1 FE B 8 550 B 52003525280 -
2003 4H308 °

*2 BENEEERBEQAS%RU LR
RERDWRREMHKE -

16 Notes payables

*1 The maturity date is from 28 February 2003 to 30 April 2003 .
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17~

18~

19~

P& A BR X

2 There was no account payable due from shareholders who hold 5%

or more of the Company’s shares.

2002.12.31 2001.12.31
PR Accounts payable 110,078 71,779
1 ZEHRERAOEMSRER2,251F
TEBRUAMEEREBHEN o 17 Accounts payable
"2 BRI A AR 5% R A L& *1 Payables that had been outstanding over 3 years are mainly not
RBR KR REN MR - brought into balance for no new business.
"3 B A RR 30 5 AR B 40 48 71 53.36% - 2 There was no account payable due from shareholders who hold 5%
FREHNERNBNEHRBER or more of the Company’s shares.
FEAS BRFKHYIB A0 o
o, *3 The end of the period’s is 53.36% more than the beginning of the
%E LIQ ,E\E TA period’s, mainly because of added purchased materials for increasing
production.
2002.12.31 2001.12.31
R Deposits from customers 6,794 10,606
1 IRECHEB1 FHREKRERRE,126F
RERRMABENEERN 18 Deposits from customers
"2 BWRRBRIIFAAR5%R A L& *1 Deposits aging over one year, is 1,126K, that had not been brought
RERGHRRELHTR - into balance with clients.
JL
J@'ﬁ- HX %U *2 There was no deposits from customers due from shareholders who

hold 5% (including 5% ) or more of the Company’s shares.

REZRE R AR
Name of Shareholders 2002.12.31 2001.12.31 Reasons
KRR E% XA
State shares Dividend had not
12,866 17,155 been paid this year
HEZEAR EEXMS
Legal Persons Shares 1,003 1,338 As above
BB AR E% XA
Negotiable Stock A-share 4,569 6,092 As above
RBRHE EEXMS
Negotiable Stock H-share 9,000 12,000 As above
Hith EEXMS
Other 5,136 5,094 As above
&5t
Total 32,574 41,679
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20>

21>

22>

ERXBE
19 Dividend payable
BEHRE
2002.12.31 2001.12.31 Taxed ratio
EXEREH Income tax (5,764) (4,437) 15%
ERIEEB VAT (13,459) (4,054) 17%
EREES Operating tax 100 62 3%--5%
ERHER Urban maintenance
construction tax (950) 455 7%
BEXHEEMH M Additional Education
Expenses (166) 229 3%
EXEARES IIT Payable (1,664) 0
EXtihERH Land Use Tax Payable (309) 0
EXEES Real Estate Tax Payable 182 0 1.2%
&3t Total (22,030) (7,745)
Hth AR
20. Tax payables
2002.12.31 2001.12.31
Hib SR Other payable 32,499 19,694
1 AR H b B XA B P AR B IB3
FORBEAREA - 21. Other payable
2 R B RBRI AR AR 5%R AL *1 There was no the balance over 3 years at the end of this year.
RRERDHRREMHRIE -
iﬁ TE% )EH *2 There was no other payable due from shareholders who hold 5%
(including 5% ) or more of the Company’s shares.
2002.12.31 2001.12.31
EEfE Bonus to the directors 2,000 1,500
BitE Audit expenses 1,000 1,100
A& Total 3,000 2,600
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23>

24~

—FRIPVRBERE

22 Accrued expenses
FHx
2002.12.31 2001.12.31 Rate of annual
BEREXR" Guaranteed loan 200,000 0 3.51-4.05%
&5t Total 200,000 0
* —FREHHRABREIH LR
ERAEMARKEDARER - 23 Long-term loans within one year
y%ﬂﬁ%*éé *1 The long term loans within one year is guaranteed by Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited.
PHERER PHEELH
Name of minority Ratio 2002 2001
LWREEBEERAT Shandong Kangda Pharm.Co. 45% 135 0
REEGNEHAEAR Dongying Lanjing Tech.Co. 47% 427 0
LREREBEFRAR Shandong Datai Pharm.Co. 40% 234 0
LWRHFEBHEEBARET AT Shandong Xinhua Pharamceutical Group Co. 12% 429 271
LWRFEBHEEBARET AT Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co. 10% 210 0
AAANER KA S Japan Gonghe Pharm.Co. 25% 1,034 0
TR=MICIRMAT Beijing Santian Chemical Co. 5% 207 0
CL Total 2,676 2n
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25+ BRA&
24 Minority shareholders’ equity
2002.12.31 2001.12.31
- REITRER®A: Unlisted shares:
1 BEARS 1. Sponsors’ share 214,440 214,440
Hep D BRRGERERSD) States shares (unlisted shares) 214,440 214,440
BREARTRG Domestic legal persons shares 0 0
NEEARTRG Legal persons shares 0 0
2 BEZEAR (ERBRA) 2. Collecting Legal person
share (unlisted shares) 16,720 16,720
3 BRR 3. Transferring and Allotting shares 0 0
4~ IBBIR 4. Employee shares 0 0
5- BERREM 5. Preferred stock and others 0 0
KETRBRG G5 Total 231,160 231,160
= BETRERS Listed shares
1 BRETARBEBER (AR) 1. Public A shares (listed shares) 76,153 76,153
2 BERLETHHER 2. H shares (listed shares) 0 0
3 BHLTHNER HER) 3. Foreign-capital shares in domestic listing 150,000 150,000
4 Hith 4. Foreign-capital shares in overseas listing 0 0
BETRBRAOE Listed negotiable stock total 226,153 226,153
= Re#G Total stock 457,313 457,313

26~ EXRpIE
25 Share capital
2002.12.31 FHA8 FHRED  2001.12.31

Opening bal. Increased Decreased Closing bal.
EEEMEE Surplus on asset revaluation 60,910 0 0 60,910
RERTHEE Share premium 496,851 0 0 496,851
BEZREE Donation 1,158 0 0 1,158
&t Total 558,919 0 0 558,919
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27 »

28~

BENE
26 Capital surplus
2001.12.31 xHaEm FHEY 2002.12.31
Opening bal.  Increased Decreased Closing bal.
ZEBRBAKES Statutory surplus reserve 57,225 6,904 0 64,129
EEBHBAESE Discretionary surplus reserve 53,712 6,877 0 60,589
DEE Statutory employee welfare 22,915 3,452 2,179 *1 24,188
&t Total 133,852 17,233 2,179 148,906
“ APHEESNHAFHIBARBIERE
8D ARMEBE - 27 Surplus reserve
%U 5F§ /]:7\ @E *1 The 2,179K less in statutory employee welfare in this year is used for
repair of facilities of employee’s dormitory.
2002.12.31 2001.12.31
FFE Profit after tax 68,764 80,896
i B RS BFE Add: Undistributed profit at
beginning of the year 190,440 166,519
] 44t 2 B K FH Profit available for the year 259,204 247,415
A RIGEERBRLABE(10%) Less: Appropriation of statutory
surplus reserve 6,904 8,200
REGEEAZE £ (5%) Appropriation of statutory
employees welfare reserve 3,452 4,100
At B R 2 BRI Undistributed profit available for the year 248,848 235,115
A REERHBLABE(10%) Less: Appropriation of discretionary
surplus reserve 6,877 8,090
B F 2 B Dividends distribution 27,439 36,585
HAR K 2 B FI 8 Undistributed profit at the end of the year* 214,532 190,440

*1

BREANTESEY ST -_FEA
BABMWER > ERI10%MEER
BAEE 5SRO FESH10%ME
ERBRLAESE RERSKE
457,312,830/ ' M ERFIKEER
SRAERARK0.067T ° BREM
ARBRRAERAEB -

28 Appropriation of profit

"1

According to the Company’s proposed plan for the dividends
distribution, cash dividend of RMB 0.06 per share (457,312,830 shares
in total) to shareholders is proposed after appropriation of 10%, 5%
and 10% the profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve, the

statutory public welfare reserve and the discretionary surplus,
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29~ FEEBRA ~ AR

30~

respectively.

Bp %
Hep:
SE

LI

At

ETEEBBA TEXEBERF
sales Cost

2002%F 20014 20025 20014

Bulk pharmaceuticals 749,548 678,666 566,361 494,069

0O Include: export sales 472,310 416,050 356,418 299,355
Preparations 391,997 398,743 269,688 257,511

mREAM Chemicals and other products 32,005 21,849 22,580 15,167
Total 1,173,550 1,099,258 858,629 766,747

AATEAEREFHENKALE
%180,210F & AL RAEHHE

WA B Ll 515.36% ©

FTEEBHR T KM

29 Sales and cost

*1

The sales of the top five is 180,210K, which is about 15.36% of the

whole sale of the company during the period.

HHER 18 {:4%) 20025 2001%F
Standard
wEB e X HE (B B 7%
City Construction Tax 7% of VAT payables of this year 2,167 4,631
HEERM FE XS E B 3%
Education Expenses Additional 3% of VAT payables of this year 929 1,985
EEB EEE-LON 5%
Operating tax 5% of design income of this year 93 0
i
Total 3,189 6,616

TEEBEISAFBRLFETR
51.80% @ RERAQEHHOESH
FREUNEFENRELRRRARE
BAN  SRAFNEIEEBT
B - MEREHD  TEEBHERMMT
23

30

Tax and additional

*1

The end of the period’s is 51.80% less than the beginning of the
period’s, mainly because of the input VAT from purchase of raw
materials used for export sales is due to the change from refundable

to exempt from taxes in this year. The incidental taxes that calculated
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31> E {&%ﬁ%*u Nid on VAT base had decreased.
Item 20026 20014
A 541} FIHE KA X i FE
Other Other Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating operating operating
revenue cost profit revenue cost profit
HEMH Sales of materials 47,572 46,316 1,256 44,282 43,437 845
HEKER Sales of water,
electricity and gas 15,621 15,144 477 10,568 10,485 83
BitEE Technology supplied
and rental income 477 188 289 1,799 203 1,596
HE Rent 2056 113 1,943 2,513 138 2,375
&t Total 65,726 61,761 3,965 59,162 54,263 4,899

32 MBEH
31 Other operating profit

20025 20014
FMEER Interest expenses 13,804 18,066
RITFESE Banking charge 1,356 174
B FERA Less: Interest income 12,317 14,667
EHEX Exchange loss 626 550
o ER W Less: exchange income 14 0
Hith Others (964) (1,245)
ast Total 2,491 2,878

33 BEWS
32 Financial expenses

20025 200145
4N e Pool, joint operation profit distribution 816 3,035
a% Total 816 3,035
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34~

35>

36 »

—E ST ON

33 Investment income

20024 20014
BEEEFEWRE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,186 828
g A Fines income 53 51
Hity Others 439 260
a% Total 2,678 1,139
-

34 Non-operating income

20025 20016
REEEEERX Loss on disposal of fixed assets 432 448
TRE - BREXH Overdue penalty and fines 3,035 2,121
BB Donations 0 0
Hits Others 3,695 2,955
a5t Total 7,162 5,524

1 ERIZHEAFREFEMEBEES

29.66% * RER (1)AFHRBUE -

HEBARS  QBRREENRS

ERBEHTEEM -

AT Ry E Ath B A

ENEE

EEBR

35 Non-operating expenses

The end of the period’s is 29.66% more than the beginning of the

period’s, mainly because: (1) occurred decorating expenses for

occupational school; (2) plus drainage expenses for environment

protect.

20024

ERE

MOE

ExeE

HsE
EBBEE

EE - mEHERE
Hft

a3t

Travelling expenses
Office Outlay

Director’s expenses
Drainage expenses

Business entertainment expenses
Advertisement and marketing expenses

Others

Total

8,819
15,956
2,720
2,310
2,181
45,775
25,015

102,776
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37 BARIEHHRIE 36 Cash paid for other operating activities
37.1. FEUWERFX

37 Notes to the parent compan o
L (1 PANY o  mmus
Ratio Provision Ratio Provision
2002.12.31 % for bad debt  2001.12.31 % for bad debt
—&LlA  Within 1 year 233,336 87.90% 1,167 217,288 89.40% 1,071
—ZEZHF 1yearto2years 17,691 6.66% 1,769 15,687 6.45% 1,563
ZEZHF  2yearsto 3 years 14,327 5.40% 2,865 9,197 3.78% 1,839
=B L Over3years 100 0.04% 100 892 0.37% 892
Chi Total 265,454 100% 5,901 243,064 100% 5,365

*1 BARBRBEP IR EREN 37.1. Accounts receivable

SHEBEHR70,105F T -
HEWRRBREL R
26.41% ° *1 The balance of the top five account receivables is 70,105K,

is about 26.41% of the balance of Dec.31,2002..
2 AEERBEADROEHE

EHEIFEULREKRER
9,361F It °
2 The amount of 9,361K which the company had written-off
*3 EUERERRPESELQFS the accounts receivables over 3 years .
% B BA_E SRR BERR 47 HO IR 3R
BUHRK -
*3 There was no account receivables due from shareholders
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37 BRRERREE @)

37.2.

who hold 5% or more of the Company’s shares.

H B WK
37 Notes to the parent company (continued)
;4] IR ] BRER
Provision Provision
2002.12.31 ratio% for bad debt 2001.12.31 ratio%  for bad debt
—&EBA  Within 1 year 81,789 69.50% 41 103,711 95.78% 45
—ZZ§ 1yearto?2years 33,157 28.17% 247 301 0.30% 30
“ZE=F 2yearsto3years 93 0.08% 19 3,989 3.92% 342
=®FL L Over3years 2,642 2.24% 828 0 0 0
&t Total 117,681 100% 1,135 108,001 100% 417
1 SEBANHMBERRR 37.2. Other receivables
W ORB41,429F ¢ -
1535.20% ; EWHETE
ARMNBEEBD HENRE 1 The main item of the other receivable is: export backdraw
24,409F 7T » 1510.72% ° receivable is 41,429K, amounting to 35.20%; Sales of
rejected products receivable from XinHua Industry & Trade
*2 ERIEmRTERERR Co. 24,409K, making up 10.72%.
B EREEARMEE
B B RIE R FE W B B ROGR
BEKEBBES - AHNRS *2 The interest receivable for the fixed deposit with Industrial &
HBAREH BEWHER Commercial Bank of China, Zibo Branch, receivables from
WAERERE - BRRERA Group Company and related parties, and receivable
ARERTREEEE T unrefunded tax, etc. are not made provision, as they are
HRENEREEEE K collectable when due.
E o
*3 HRBEF XK B BEN
SHEHETHR61,308F 1
HEMERREBRBEL S
52.10% ° *3 The balance of the top five of account receivables is 61,308
K, amounting to 52.10% of the balance of Dec.31,2002.
*4 HttERRFPRHELAT
46.89% % 17 HY IR R AT &
B X % %6,868F T °
*4 The balance of one of the stockholders, Xinhua Group

169



EHEBEREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEGZETHENUARE T LREN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB'000)

(RRIF 1 I o it R i )
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

37 - BAREIMREE @)

CO.LTD, which holds 46.89% shares of the company, is

6,868K.
37.3. RIIRE
37 Notes to the parent company (continued)
2001.12.31 BEER FHam A 2002.12.31 BEER
Opening Closing
Balance  Impairment Increased  Decreased Balance  Impairment
REBERE  Stock investment 57,265 0 5,944 0 63,209 0
REBERE  Securities Investment 164 0 0 88 76 0
&3t Total 57,429 0 5,944 88 63,285 0
Ho: REBRERE :
37.3. Long-term investments

#EELn EHRRAT iR 3 it L e
E1) REHR BElA  RREW HEME HRHE  BABE  REER  GEER

The period % of Initial Current Accumulated
Name of of ownership  investment equity equity Closing Closing  Opening
Company investment held amount adjustment adjustment  balance Impairment Impairment
XERSEREALR 3
Tiantong Securities Co. Long-term 1.46% 30,000 30,000 0 0
AFERRAT R
Pacific insurance Co. Long-term 0.25% 7,000 7,000 0 0
LRBEDHERBERLE R
Sandong Huanzhong Pharm. Co. Long-term 5.50% 1,500 1,500 0 0
SN BENEREERAT 50
Jinrui Sifang Inves. Co. 50 years 6.4% 3,200 3,200 0 0
RER R
Communication Bank Long-term 13,577 13,577 0 0
HERERHRERAR 5§
Xinhua Pharm.Design Institute 5 years 90% 1,800 88 88 1,888 0 0
HEFE=ALIARAT R
Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical Co. Long-term 70% 2,897 2,897 0 0
HEFEAERE R
Zibo Xinhua Pharm.Co. Long-term 88% 1,760 219 1,387 3,147 0 0
At
Total 61,734 367 1,475 63,209 0 0
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37 BAREHRRAE @)

37.4. EEEBWA - K&

Include: Long-term stock investments

37 Notes to the parent company (continued)

EEEBBRA ETEXEERF
Sales Cost
20025F 20015 2002 20016
Friz Bulk pharmaceuticals 749,548 678,666 566,361 494,069
Heg: HN0O Include: export sales 472,310 416,050 356,418 299,355
25| Preparations 391,997 388,145 269,688 250,249
tIERmREM Chemicals and
other products 15,714 21,849 10,974 15,167
&% Total 1,157,259 1,088,660 847,023 759,485
* AHATRMAEREEHE
U ABIER180,210F 37.4. Sales & cost
T AT BHEERAN
15.58% ° *1 The sales of the top five is 180,210K°Awhich is about 15.58%
of the whole sale of the company during the period.
37.5. ®EWHE
20025 20015
NG Pool, joint operation profit distribution 816 3,457
RERLZABIER Increase-decrease amount of the owner’s
BREBMFNE equity by investment which had been
adjusted at end of period 367 0
&t Total

1,183 3,457
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- BBATBERRARS

37.5. Investment income
38.1. #E2002F12H318 » &4

ANEEEBATNELRER

38 Related parties transactions

mE
38.1. The general descriptions of the related parties as
LFER LRRE EARR  HRE gEfMEs REEE HRALPRE
Name of the Representative Registration Registered Business Relationship
related parties Nature of legal person site capital  scope with the Company
LRHEREER EREELT BinR A AR¥298508 EE (I
ARERLR REE g E5% BERBAR
Shadong Xinhua Company He Duanshi Zhangdian, RMB298,500 Pharmaceutical & Holding company
Pharmaceutical Group Limited Zibo thousands chemical production,
Company Limited trade and others
LRFZETERS Riy#LE BEXR 4R AR08 AEE#ET B £EAH
BRRA REE BERRE ZTRE
Shandong Xinhua Joint Stock Fu Henggian Zhangdi-an, RMB23,200 Production and sales Related party and
Industry & Trade enterprises Zibo thousands of bulk pharmaceuticals a subsidiary of the
Company Limited and others Group Company
LRHFEHRER BREEAR IR EE AR¥1540BT  Ret EEEH B £SELH
EEARERLH REE AREER ZFRE
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Company Wang Shoujian Zhangdi-an, RMB15,400  Design, production Related party and
Packing Company Limited Zibo thousands and sale of packing a subsidiary of the
Limited products Group Company
RS EERE HHERE HRE  HE £7310588  HE-#E BY £ELF
BRRA REE fLBRRE ZFRH
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Joint Venture Tao Jingshi Zhangdi-an, $3,105 Production and sales Related party and
Xincat Pharmaceutical Zibo thousands of the bulk a subsidiary of the
Company Limited pharmaceuticals Group Company
LWREBHEST PHaE [ACE S £71,13888n  £E HEE BE £EAR
HEBERAT REE BRIER ZFAHE
Shandong Zibo Joint Venture Fu Henggian Zhangdi-an, $11,388 Production and Related party and
Chemferm Pharmaceutical Zibo thousands sale of Cephalexin a subsidiary of the
Company Limited and Cephradine Group Company
WRFEHERGS ARERLR BEE HE AR®190.18%  GERBH B £EAF
BEEREEAH REE ZFRH
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Company Mi Chuanh-uang Zhangdi-an, RMB19,301 Comprehensive Related party and
Comprehensive Service Limited Zibo thousands services a subsidiary of the
Company Limited Group Company
WERHFEHIET BEREELT RAE A ARM3T4ER  EE HERI B £EAH
ARERLR HIE RRRES ZTRFE
Shandong Xinhua Company Zhengdazheng Zichuan, RMB3,174 Production and Related party and
Zichuan Chemical Limited Zibo thousands sale of bulk a subsidiary of the
Company Limited pharmaceuticals Group Company
LRFEREEENE EREEAR ELE . ARMIT3SER KB #E B £EAH
HRARERLH BUE LIEm ZTRE
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Company Xiebingshu Boshan, RMB7,735 Production and Related Party
Sulphuric Acid Manufaturing  Limited Zibo thousands sales of Chemical and a subsidiary
Company Limited products of the Group
LRFEREEENE BEREEAR I%-  HE ARMO50ET  £E- #E B £ELH
RRLIBERERAAR REE tIER ZFRH
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Company Wangxuyi Zhangdian, RMB6,500 Production and Related Party
Dongfeng Chemical Limited Zibo thousands sales of Chemical and a subsidiary
Company Limited products of the Group
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g st
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEBEEEZHENUAREF T RER)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

i B oo

38 BEMATBERERERS @)

38.2. ANFEEEEBLTARS

38.2.1.

RABEMT :

ARARAAOBABARNEESD

m o REE N - HRMEI

at 31 December 2002 are as below:

38 Related parties transactions (continued)

38.2. The major transactions with the related parties
are described as follows:

BR %
38.2.1. Sales of products and provision of energy, labour and
nEE [ ] ] fi &
Closing
Amount balance Notes
B (FEfT)
Receivable (Payable)
Hf:  WURHEIERGAF HEDIR=E
Include:  Shandong Xinhua Industry & 14,315 24,409 Sales of power
Trade Company Limited
HIMETERAR Bl R %
Shandong Xinhua Zichuan 24 0 Technic service
Chemical Company Limited
HERERRAT HEDD
Zibo Xincat pharmaceutical 3,017 4,708 Sales of power
Company Limited
FESFREFRLT HEBN
Xinhua Chemferm Pharmaceutical 5,366 296 Sales of power
Company Limited
FERLEBEFRAT HEDD
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Packing 1,293 0 Sales of power
Company Limited
FEGEREDAT HEBN
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Comprehensive 1,952 21 Sales of power

Service Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEGZETHENUARE T LREN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB'000)

(1RYE o ] o il 2 A A )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EELTERERRERS @)

38.2. ANFRETERABEATARS
REMNT © (&)

38.2.2. B A Bl @A D AR MEM

38

technology services by the Company to the related

parties

Related parties transactions (continued)

38.2. The major transactions with the related parties

R A& are described as follow: (continued)
BER 3 fi &£
Closing
Amount balance Notes
B (FEFE)
Receivable (Payable)
Hb:  WRHEIERHBAF R
Include:  Shandong Xinhua Industry & 32,043 0 Raw materials
Trade Company Limited
HIMEIERAR F#8
Zichuan Chemical Company Limited 6,754 (1,371) Raw materials
FESIREFRAT FE##
Xinhua Chemferm pharmaceutical 12,415 0 Raw materials
Company Limited
FERREBRARLA 17,368 0 BEMH
Xinhua Packing Company Limited Raw materials
FEGERBLF 12,156 0 EHRRE
Xinhua Comprehensive Lawout and
Service Company other services
i 1 B R
Zibo Acid Plant 0 7 Raw materials
HERRIEIE R
Zibo Dongfeng Chemical 7,146 (91) Raw materials

Company Limited.

38.2.3. N1\ R EREAEE 1N R A b fE 2R
(RBEA - BRE)

38.2.2. Raw materials supplied by the related parties to the

Company (continued)

BER 3] fil &
Closing
Amount balance Notes
gy (FEf)
Receivable (Payable)
He o LWRHEBEKEALRF BERRRBERAZ

5,806 6,868

Loans and advances

Include:  Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited
AAREBEBARNAERS

HERTEERETER

38.2.3. Other transactions with the Related Parties (advance,

loans and etc.)
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EHHBEREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEBEEEZHENUAREF T RER)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

39

B RN EGE

39.1.

39.2.

FH1E2002F12A318 » &R
AEEERNERFEWMT :

The transactions with the related parties are all settled
at market prices.

39 Capital commitments

2002.12.31 2001.12.31
EHENERE KBS Contracted but not yet appropriated 48,720 12,881
EECREMBARELN  Authorized by Directors but not contracted 303,500 185,500
&5t Total 352,220 198,381

EENERARBNIEEHA
il B

39.1. As at December 31 2002, the Company had the
following capital commitments:

HEHEB 2003 EH
Name of Project 2003 Investment

(RMB ‘000)
uhi Bk Caffeine 38,650
Z 3R Analgin 5,470
A Tiny powder centre 4,600
a&t Total 48,720
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEGZETHENUARE T LREN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB'000)

(RRIF 1 I o it R i )
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

40 »

39 - BEARMEE )

30.3. EECREBRENNER

39.4.

39.2. The listing of projects which are signed by
directors but not appropriated

PHE 39 Capital commitments
HE&®E 2003 E
Name of Project 2003 Investment
(RMB “000)
kR T2 Caffine 90,000
& B BGE (A E) Injection Plant Renovation(West Area) 50,000
mEZEERMEER (RA) JV Project for Bulk IBuprofen(East Area) 50,000
AT O Technology Centre 20,000
5 BIGMPM & Tablet Plant GMP Renovation 15,000

SREEIGEFEN S (RE) New Construction Site Renovation
for Sewage Dispose(East Area) 20,000
REEH Safty Measures 1,500
RREHE Environmental Protection Measures 2,000
BRI e AR Instrument and Apparatus for Test Use 5,800
SBEE Factory Beautiful and Auxiliary Facilities 9,000
BERGRREBEE Warehouse and Transportation 2,700
ERER Dormitory 5,000
HEEH Equipment Renovation 7,000
SHE - BNAGMPHRE GMP’s Renovation for Aminopyrine and Presnisone 3,000
TMP » =% TMP, Trimethy Orthoformate 5,000
ARFEE (—2K) Ibuprofen Expansion(No.1 sub-factory) 5,000
ASP (SA) ASP(SA) 7,000
=) Hydrocortison Base 1,500
DK ~ O 14 fiig DK, Pyrazolone 1,500
&5t Total 303,500

MRIFE L MARSIEN - B
1E20025 128318 » AL
BHMERAFESE -

HEEE

BZ2002F 128310 * X ARES
BEWNERREEE -

40

39.3. The listing of projects which are authorized by
directors but not signed yet

39.4.
other capital
mentioned above.

Contingent Events

As at December 31, 2002, the Company have no
commitments signed except

176



(1RIF 1 I o it U i )
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EHHBEREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEBEEEZHENUAREF T RER)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

41 HibE1g

None

HZE2002%F12H831H ' XATESE

BRENHEMERER -

42 ~ ERER

41 Other matters

For the year ended 31st December 2002, no other significant
disclosure matter noted.

RERTESES(DBRITESENA
AEERERRRAENE EE
ERBENSRKSOHERKE)
WER > KAAT2002FE2EHE 42 Supplement
MMEEYHENIEERSER

ERWEMT : The Return on equity and Earnings per share calculated by
fully diluted and weighed average are as follows;
HEBHE @ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ SR (FT/E)
Profit Return on equity (%) Earnings per share(RMB)
2EEE miEFEy 2EEE miEFy
Fully  Weighted Fully Weighted
diluted average diluted average
FEEKRE Profit from principal operations 22.59 22.67 0.6817 0.6817
& RE Operating profit 6.16 6.19 0.1860 0.1860
ERE Profit after taxation 4.98 5.00 0.1504 0.1504
MR F Profit after taxation
BEENFNE and extraordinary items 4.98 5.00 0.1504 0.1504
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(RUEE P2 1 i8)

HE E -%ﬂ ﬁ (FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSE ONLY)
=[]

RECONCILIATION OF ACCOUNTS

s
B

EREBLTERM2E5TERIF]  Differences between accounts prepar ed under
REIETHERIRERER E ZZ%  Hong Kong generally accepted accounting
principles ("HKGAAP") and PRC accounting

standards
BE-BZ=fF
+=A=+—-H
tEEZ
R-ES"H R G B A
+ZB=+—H8 Profit attributable
}PHE & to shareholders for
Net assets at  the year ended
31st December  31st December
2002 2002
ARBTFT AREFR
RMB'000 RMB'000
BB ENER Prepared under PRC accounting standards 1,379,670 68,764
RERZEEMN2ESTEREA HKGAAP adjustments:
FiEz A% :
E—ARAERA=TRER Depreciation charges due to revaluation on
MEEZINEEHR 30th September 1996 (17,457) (1,316)
ABHR ETBEGzEMEE Surplus from revaluation for listing of H shares 21,300 -
S RY B EES Overprovision for education fund 8,995 1,068
S/ RENEES Over/(under) provision for welfare expenses 9,832 (135)
REREES Provision for doubtful debts (11,127)
BEAR Tax adjustment (1,809)
FRHERREFEME Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories (2,143)
“EECFRRRERE 2002 Proposed final dividend 27,439
Hity Others (267)
REALERMETRAGESR Prepared under HKGAAP 1,414,433 68,381
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(RYEE 2% 1i%)
(FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSE ONLY)

Mt ¥ =E

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TIRAEEBE_EZT-_F+-A=1
—BLEBAFENEERVNEEAERAE
E-HERENREBEERNZETR
IR

The following are summaries of the profit and loss accounts and
balance sheets of the Group for the five years ended 31st
December 2002 prepared under HKGAAP.

Bk Profit and loss accounts
B2 —ZZE-§ ZEZTHE —-ANAE —-AANE
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
ARBFIT AR¥Fr ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Turnover 1,173,550 1,099,289 1,044,073 950,661 973,884
R A & F Profit before taxation 80,996 98,097 83,404 68,268 65,027
BB Taxation (12,559) (16,307) (15,512) (10,400) (10,239)
BREZER Profit after taxation 68,437 81,790 67,892 57,868 54,788
DEBRRER Minority interests (56) (44) (66) (30) -
B RIEGZF Profit attributable to shareholders 68,381 81,746 67,826 57,838 54,788
BEEABER Balance sheets
ZEE_f —BE-§ ZEZEZTFE —-AMAE —-AANE
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
ARBFIT AREFrT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WmEE Total assets 1,915,244 1,837,248 1,354,079 1,377,136 1,305,449
Hme s Total liabilities (500,811) (452,432) (387,341) (461,131) (433,098)
EEFRE Net assets 1,414,433 1,384,816 966,738 916,005 872,351

—WAWNEEZE-_ZESEENEAER
BEEFESHE CREFTERFIR(KE
EF -

The total liabilities and net assets for 1998 to 2000 were restated
with the effect of adopting SSAP 9 (revised).
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